
       Winnebago County Board 
       Regular Adjourned Meeting 
       Thursday, April 26, 2018 
 

 

A M E N D E D   A G E N D A 
 
 
 
Call to Order ------------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
  
 
Agenda Changes--------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
 
Roll Call-------------------------------------COUNTY CLERK, TIANA J. McCALL 
 
 
 
Invocation -------------------------------------------------------------------------D. REDD 
 
 

Awards, Presentations and/or Proclamations and Public 
Participation 

 
 
Awards -    None 
 
Presentations  -    None   

 
Proclamations               - “St. Ambrogio Mutual Benefit Society’s 100th 

Anniversary” – Accepted by George Mattis,   
President of St. Ambrogio Society and Valeri 
DeCastris, Member of St. Ambrogio Ladies 
Auxilliary 

 
- “Public Health Accreditation” – Accepted by  Dr. 

Sandra Martell, Public Health Administrator, 
Winnebago County Health Department 
 

- “30th Anniversary of the Great American Cleanup” 
Accepted by Frank Manzullo, Great American 
Cleanup Coordinator 



 
 
Public Participation      -   None        
 
 
Minutes 
 
“May I Please Have a Motion to Approve the Minutes from March 22, 2018 
Meeting and to Layover the Minutes from the April 12, 2018 Meeting. 
 
Announcements & Communications-------------------TIANA J. McCALL 
 
“The Items Listed Below Were Received as Correspondence” 
Chairman Haney To Be “PLACED ON FILE”. 
 
 
1. County Clerk McCall received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission the following: 
 

a. Agenda for  Meeting with Exelon Generation Company, LLC to discuss draft 
guidance regarding emergency response organization staffing 

 
b. Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 79 /Tuesday, April 24, 2018 / Notices 
 
c. Final Director’s Decision - Barry Quigley 10 CFR 2.206 Petition Regarding 

Exelon's Byron and Braidwood Stations 
 

2. County Clerk McCall received from Comcast a letter regarding the following:  
 

a. Addition to the Digital Economy Package 
 
b. Changes to the Comcast channel line-up in our community. 

 
 
3. County Clerk McCall received from the Winnebago County Treasurer, Sue Goral 

the Treasurer Bank Balances Report for March, 2018. 
 
4. County Clerk McCall received from Charter Communications Spectrum Television 

Channel Line-up – Channel Changes for the following: 
 
 a. County of Winnebago 
 b. Township of Roscoe 
 c. Township of Harlem 
 d. Township of Rockton  
 



5. County Clerk McCall received from the Illinois Commerce Commission a Notice of 
Public Forum scheduled for the following location, date and time: 

  
 Johnsburg High School Gymnasium, 2002 West Ringwood Road, 
 Johnsburg, Illinois, on May 7, 2018, at the hour of 7:00 P.M. 
 
 For the purpose of received public comment concerning proposed general increase 

in water and sewer rates proposed by Utility Services of Illinois, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GO TO REGULAR AGENDA 



Page | 1  
 

REVISED 
4/24/18 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street ~ Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room ~ 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, April 26, 2018 

6:00 p.m.  
 

Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  
• Awards – None 
• Presentations – None 
• Proclamations –  
 “St. Ambrogio Mutual Benefit Society’s 100th Anniversary” – Accepted by George 

Mattis, President of St. Ambrogio Society and Valeri DeCastris, Member of St. 
Ambrogio Ladies Auxilliary 

 “Public Health Accreditation” – Accepted by Dr. Sandra Martell, Public Health 
Administrator, Winnebago County Health Department 

 “30th Anniversary of the Great American Cleanup” – Accepted by Frank Manzullo, 
Great American Cleanup Coordinator 

 
Board Member Correspondence 
 
Chairman’s Report 
 
County Administrator’s Report 
 
Consent Agenda 

• Raffle Report 
• Bills 
 

Standing Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee – Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Budget Amendment 2018-023 – Budget Neutral – Sheriff Grant for New Speed Trailer 

to be Laid Over 
C. Budget Amendment 2018-024 – Host Fee Budget Amendment to be Laid Over 

 
2. Zoning Committee – Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 



Page | 2  
 

A. Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 
1. Z-04-18  A map amendment to rezone from the AG District to the RE District for 

the property commonly known as 8270 Tate Road, Rockford, IL 61101 in Owen 
Township, District 1 to be laid over 

2. SU-02-18  A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt / 
concrete crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for 
the property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 in 
Rockton Township, District 2 to be laid over 

 
3. Economic Development Committee – Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Approving Recommendations for 2018 Host Fee Allocations and Complete 

Listing of Host Fee Allocations for Fiscal Year 2018 
C. Resolution to Approve Payment of Architectural Services Rendered 
D. Resolution Granting Authority to the Winnebago County Board Chairman to Execute 

the Documents Necessary to Complete a Loan for $50,000 from the Revolving Loan 
Fund to Spare Part Solutions, Inc. and Kebby Industries, Inc. 

E. Resolution Approving a Redevelopment Agreement by and Between the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois and Quickstart 39 LLC 
 

4. Operations & Administrative Committee – Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Affixing Compensation and Other Benefits for Certain Elected County 

Officials 
C. Resolution Authorizing Joint Purchasing Seal Coating Services 
D. Resolution Establishing a Special Committee on County Government Efficiency 
E. Resolution Denouncing Neo-Nazi and White Supremacist Actions in Winnebago 

County 
 

5. Public Works Committee – Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 

 
6. Public Safety Committee – Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Traffic and Parking Enforcement Agreement with 

Cherry Vale Mall, LLC 
C. Resolution Approving Position Requisition for Sheriff’s Deputy Position for 

Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department 
D. Resolution to Approve Agreement for Phase 1 Lean Implementation Consulting 

Services in Sheriff’s Department 
E. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 

With the City of Rockford for Temporary 911 Call Taking and Dispatch Services 
 
Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
 



Page | 3  
 

Adjournment    
 

Next Meeting: Thursday, May 10, 2018 









 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



1 

 

2018 Fiscal Year Finance: April 19, 2018 
 Lay Over: April 26, 2018 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 10, 2018 
Ted Biondo, Finance Committee Chairman   
   

 

2018 CO 
 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 at its September 28, 2017 meeting; 
and,  
     

 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the following increases are hereby authorized. 

 
2018-023 Sheriff 
Reason: The Sheriff's Office was awarded a grant from State Farm Insurance in the amount of $10,595. 
The grant dollars will be used to purchase a new speed trailer for the department. 
Alternative: None 
Impact to fiscal year 2019 budget: None 
Revenue Source: State Farm Insurance Grant 

 Acct Description Org Obj Prj  
 Other Dept Equipment 24000 46440  $10,595 

Total Adjustment: $10,595 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

 
                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
   

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 

 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 



2018-023

110,595



1 

 

2018 Fiscal Year Finance: April  25, 2018 
 Lay Over: May 10, 2018 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: May 24, 2018 
Ted Biondo, Finance Committee Chairman   
   

 

2018 CO 
 
TO:  THE HONORABLE MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 and recommends 
its adoption. 

ORDINANCE 
 

 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2018 at its September 28, 2017 meeting; 
and,  
     

 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to the 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore 
the following increases are hereby authorized. 

 
2018-024 Host Fee Fund 
Reason: Long-term commitments were not previously included in Host Fee allocations, Budget Amendment 
2018-003 was not necessary and new fiscal year allocations were approved by the Board and several previously 
approved allocations were reduced by the Board. 
Alternative: None 
Impact to fiscal year 2019 budget: None 
Revenue Source: Host Fee revenue 

 Acct Description Org Obj Prj  
 Maintenance & Education –Host Fee 41700 43470  (78,000) 
 Host Fee Sharing Agreement 41700 43471  40,000 
 Capital Development-Host Fee 41700 43472  233,097 
 Workforce Development-Host Fee 41700 43473  (226,675) 
 Infrastructure-Host Fee 41700 43474  (180,008) 
 Community Programs-Host Fee 41700 43475  (36,350) 
 Legacy-Host Fee 41700 43476  114,000 
 Transfers to other funds 41700 49110  375,004 

Total Adjustment: $241,068 
  



2 

 

                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 
 

 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



4/17/2018
Host Fee Fund Julia Halstead
0116

DEPT CODE
ACCT. 

NO. ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
BEGINNING 

BUDGET
ADJUSTED 
BUDGET

INCREASE 
(DECREASE)

REVISED 
BUDGET 
AMOUNT

41700 43470 Maintenance & Education-Host Fee $78,000 $78,000 ($78,000) $0
41700 43471 Host Fee Sharing Agreement $240,000 $240,000 $40,000 $280,000
41700 43472 Capital Development-Host Fee $2,041,550 $2,041,550 $233,097 $2,274,647
41700 43473 Workforce Development-Host Fee $508,050 $508,050 ($226,675) $281,375
41700 43474 Infrastructure-Host Fee $428,050 $428,050 ($180,008) $248,042
41700 43475 Community Programs-Host Fee $169,350 $169,350 ($36,350) $133,000
41700 TBD Legacy - Host Fee $0 $0 $114,000 $114,000
41700 49110 Transfers to Other Funds $815,000 $815,000 $375,004 $1,190,004

241,068$              4,521,068$     

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

No impact to the fiscal year 2019 budget.

Host Fee revenue

Approval by staff liaison:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

Long-term commitments were not previously included in Host Fee allocations, and new fiscal year allocations 
were approved by the Board and several previsouly approved allocations were reduced by the Board.

Potential alternatives to budget amendment:
None

Impact to fiscal year 2019 budget:

DEPARTMENT: SUBMITTED BY:
FUND#: DEPT. BUDGET NO. 41700

2018
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

DATE SUBMITTED: AMENDMENT NO: 2018-024



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 





Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
April 26, 2018 

 
A. PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

TO BE LAID OVER:  

     ZC RECOMMENDS:        TBD 
 

         ZC RECOMMENDS:        TBD 
 
    TO BE VOTED ON:  NONE 

 
B.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not  
       intended as a public notice): 

  
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting 

is scheduled for Wednesday, May 9, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building for the following petitions: 

   
1.    Z-17-17 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 14.65 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to         

the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District for property commonly known as 6616 42nd St. in Cherry 
Valley Township, District 11. 

2.    SU-09-17 A Special Use Permit for a Retreat Center in the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District for 
property commonly known as 6616 42nd St. in Cherry Valley Township, District 11. 

3.    SU-10-17 A Special Use Permit for a Wedding and or Reception Facility in the A2, Agriculture-Related      
      Business District for property commonly known as 6616 42nd St. in Cherry Valley Township, District 11. 

4. Z-05-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 15 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the A2, 
Agriculture-Related Business District for property commonly known as 8236 Trask Bridge Road in 
Burritt Township, District 1.  

5. Z-06-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 22 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the A2, 
Agriculture-Related Business District for property commonly known as Part of PIN: 07-18-400-002 
(north portion of PIN), Tate Road, in Owen Township, District 1.  

6. Z-07-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 30 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to the A2, 
Agriculture-Related Business District for property commonly known as Part of PIN: 09-35-400-004 
(south portion of PIN), N. Hoisington Road, in Pecatonica Township, District 1.  

 
 

1. Z-04-18 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 2.5 acres (gross) from the AG, Agricultural 
Priority District to the RE, Rural Estate District (a sub-district of the RA District), requested 
by Bradley Steward, property owner, for property commonly known as 8270 Tate Road, 
Rockford, IL 61101 in Owen Township.    

PIN: 07-18-200-004 C.B. District:          1 
Lesa Rating: 209 Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map:      NO 

 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL (5-0) 

2. SU-02-18 A special use permit to allow a batch plant inclusive of an asphalt/concrete 
crushing and storage facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority District, requested by Northern 
Illinois Service Co., applicant, represented by Attorney James A. Rodriguez, for property 
commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton Township. 

PIN(s): 03-35-200-016 and Part of PINS: 03-35-200-015  
& 03-35-200-017 C.B. District: 2 

Lesa Rating: NA Consistent W/2030 LRMP – Future Map: NA 
 ZBA RECOMMENDS: APPROVAL WITH ZBA CONDITIONS (6-1) 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
April 26, 2018 

 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 

tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, May 23, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the County 
Administration Building. 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 

Date: April 20, 2018 
Item: Resolution Approving Recommendations for 2018 Host Fee Allocations 
Prepared by: Julia Halsted, Deputy County Administrator 
 

Governing Statute: 55 ILCS 5/5-1016 states, “A county board may manage the county funds and 
county business.” 
 
County Ordinance: 2018 CO 007 states, “Host Fee funds are to be awarded for economic development 
initiatives, programs, and projects.” 
 
Associated Committee: Economic Development Committee 
 
Committee Recommendation: Pending review on April 25, 2018 
 
Background: Per the Economic Development Committee’s request, a comprehensive report of 2018 
investments is provided herein. Based on updates in multi-year investment installments due, actual 
invoice amounts, and other developments, are recommended as described in the attached 
documentation.  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Economic Development Committee support this 
resolution for consideration by the Board on April 26, 2018. 
 
 



County Board Meeting 
April 26, 2018 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the   
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Fred Wescott 
Submitted by:  Economic Development Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING RECOMMENDATIONS FOR 2018 
HOST FEE ALLOCATIONS AND COMPLETE LISTING OF HOST 

FEE ALLOCATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, previously 
approved an Ordinance Adopting a Host Fee Allocation and Award Policy for the use and 
allocation of host fee funds for economic development which sets forth categories of 
investment for these funds; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the County Board has determined that host fee funds are to be used 
for economic development, defined as growth-oriented community investment that 
benefits Winnebago County citizens and improves economic well-being and quality of 
life in the County; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the four categories of economic development encompassed by this 
policy are capital development, workforce development, infrastructure, and community 
development; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the recommendations meet the criteria of the Host Fee Allocation 
and Award Policy and have been endorsed by the Economic Development Committee.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the 
County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the County of Winnebago 
allocate host fee funds as grant awards for fiscal year 2018 in accordance with the 
schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
directed to prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Winnebago County 
Administrator and the Winnebago County Auditor. 
 



 
Respectfully submitted, 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
(AGREE)       (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

L.C. WILSON 
 
 

 L.C. WILSON 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

DAVE FIDUCCIA  DAVE FIDUCCIA 

 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
  
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



4/23/2018

2018 Host Fee Fund Projections & Allocation Summary

HOST FEE FUND STATUS

Revenue Projection 3,940,000$     

2018 Allocations (3,941,068)$    

Projected Balance (1,068)$            

RESERVE FUND STATUS

Beginning Fund Equity 2,445,572$     

2018 Allocations (580,000)$       

Current Balance 1,865,572$     

Reserve Fund Target to Fund 18‐Month Commitments 3,583,062$     

Reserve Fund Over/Under (1,717,490)$    

2018 INVESTMENT SUMMARY

Category Amount 2018 %

Capital 2,584,647$    65.58%

Community  133,000$        3.37%

Infrastructure 548,046$        13.91%

Legacy 114,000$        2.89%

Workforce 281,375$        7.14%

Host Fee Sharing 280,000$        7.10%

Grand Total 3,941,068$    100.00%

Type 2018 %

Host Fee Sharing 7.12%

Multi‐Year 58.17%

One‐Time 34.71%

Grand Total 100.00%



4/23/2018

41700 Host Fee Fund

2018 Allocations & Multi‐Year Installments Due

ORD/RES Agent Project
2018 Payment 

Amount
2017 CO 109 5Cast Plus  Financial Forecasting & Consultant Service  17,000$  

2018 CR 021 African‐American Resource Center at Booker Lighting Updates 6,000$

2018 CR 021 Alignment Rockford Police and Fire Career Academies and Pathways 2.0 22,000$  

2018 CR 021 Awaken Foundation Awaken Café Culinary Program 5,000$  

2018 CR 021 Boys & Girls Club of Rockford Fairground Boys & Girls Club Youth Development Program 56,250$  

2007 CR 006 City of Rockford  BMO Harris Banke Centre  460,000$  

2017 CR 113 City of Rockford  Barbara Coleman   320,000$  

2018 CR TBD City of Rockford  Barbara Coleman Reduction in 2018 amount due  (320,000)$

2018 CR 021 Discovery Center Museum Surrounded by Light Gallery Exhibit Tourism Attraction 2,000$  

2018 CR TBD Dom Sawchuk  Phase I Lean Implementation, Sheriff's Office  19,700$  

2017 CO 109
Economic Development District of Northern 

Illinois/Region 1 Planning Council
Planning and research services 50,000$  

2018 CR TBD
Economic Development District of Northern 

Illinois/Region 1 Planning Council
Reduction in 2018 amount due (1,625)$  

2017 CO 096 Enterprise Document Management Document management and pre‐procurement investment ‐$

2018 CR 021 Entrepreneur Club, The Entrepreneurship Resource and Development Center 5,000$  

2017 CO 109 Fehr Graham  Prairie Road Pump Neighborhood Association Well Study  10,750$  

2018 CR TBD Gary W. Anderson Architects  Architectural Services, International Women's Baseball Center  3,557$

2018 CR 021 Girl Scouts of Northern Illinois Inspire: A Teen Leadership Conference 5,000$  

2015 CR 121, 

2017 CO 099
Greater Rockford Airport Authority  Maintenance Repair Organization  706,640$  

2018 CR 021 Hope in Recovery Employment, LLC HIRE Grounds Café: Second Chance Employment 10,000$  

2018 CR 021 Illinois Department of Transportation Water District Expansion ‐ New Milford (2017 CR 107) 130,394$  

2018 CR TBD Illinois Department of Transportation Reduction in 2018 amount due;  (27,690)$  

2018 CR TBD Illinois State Association of Counties State‐wide legislation oriented county association membership 2,072$

2018 CR 021 Keep Northern Illinois Beautiful Great American Clean‐Up and Medication Collection 32,000$  

2018 CR 021 Midway Village Museum World War II Days Tourism Attraction Event 2,000$  

2018 CR 021 Neighborhood Network of Rockford, Inc Alignment and Effectiveness of Neighborhood Associations 12,000$  

2018 CR TBD Nicolay & Dart  Contractual services (Apr ‐ Sept)  30,000$  

2017 CO 109 Nicolay & Dart / Government Affairs Oct‐Mar contractual services; Government affairs expenses 35,000$  

2017 CR 111, 

2017 CO 059 
Northern Illinois Center for Governmental Studies Second half installment of strategic planning services fee 10,000$  

2018 CR 021 Northern Illinois Center for Nonprofit Excellence (NICNE) Enhancing Economic Impact of Non‐Profit Organizations  10,000$  

2018 CR 021 One Body Collaborative Alignment of faith community resources 10,000$  

2018 CR TBD Quickstart39, LLC Rock 39 Redevelopment 285,000$  

2012 CR 099 Rock 39 F & G Bonds  Rock 39 Industrial Park  ‐$

2014 CO 026 Rock Valley College  Aviation building and program   50,000$  

2018 CR 021 Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau
Choose Winnebago: Big Time, Small Towns Rural Tourism 

Campaign
10,000$  

2018 CR 021 Rockford Area Convention & Visitors Bureau Citizen Survey for Strategic Planning Input 5,000$

2018 CR 021 Rockford Area Economic Development Council  Rockforward 20/20  100,000$  

2018 CR 021 Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning Partnerships and Strategies to Reduce Violent Crime 11,470$  

2014 CO 025 Rockford Park District  Reclaiming First  350,000$  

2011 CR 096 Rockford Park District Foundation  Nicholas Conservatory  100,000$  

2016 CR 089 Rockford Public School District  Purpose Built/Fordem Forward  200,000$  

2018 CR 021 Rockford University Improving Nursing Skills for the Region through Clinical  5,000$  

2018 CR 021 Severson Dells Educational Foundation Nature Education for Winnebago County 25,000$  

2018 CR 021 United Counties Council of Illinois Professional Association Membership 5,000$  

2018 CR TBD United Counties Council of Illinois Professional Association Membership (2,500)$  

2018 CR 021 United Way of Rock River Valley 2‐1‐1 Crisis, Information, & Resource Service 2,000$  

2018 CR 021 University of Illinois Extension Extension and 4‐H Winnebago County 80,000$  

2017 CO 096 Veterans Memorial Hall, Winnebago County Government Business operations to ensure public access 35,000$  

2017 CR 143 Village of New Milford Host Fee Sharing Agreement 240,000$  

2018 CR TBD Village of New Milford Increase due to anticipated revenue increase 40,000$  

2018 CR 021 Village of Rockton Downtown Streetscape Master Plan 38,000$  

2018 CR 021 West Gateway Coalition Trades Program Scholarship Endowment 2,000$

1



4/23/2018

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Veteran support initiatives 5,000$  

2017 CO 096, 

2017 CO 099
Winnebago County  Water system trade‐out for bond payments  162,300$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County GED Education 2,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Young Professional Development and Education 7,000$

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Board Non‐Profit Support Community not‐for‐profit grants 20,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Community Community Engagement and Communications 10,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Diversity Council Diversity Council 3,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Government Government Efficiency Study 50,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Government Diversity Initiative Intership Program 10,000$  

2017 CO 109 Winnebago County Health Department  Blight Reduction ‐ Property Demolition  100,000$  

2018 CR TBD Winnebago County Health Department Additional costs due to unanticipated project scope 10,000$  

2017 CO 096 Winnebago County Highway High priority rated projects 200,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Soil & Water Conservation District Land Conservation in Winnebago County 45,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Workforce External Professional Development 15,000$  

2018 CR 021 Winnebago County Workforce Learning and Policy Compliance Training System 50,000$  

2018 CR 021 Youth Services Network, Inc (YSN) Youth Court 15,000$  

2018 CR 021 Zion West Enterprise, NFP After School Program 32,750$  

3,941,068$        

0117 Host Fee Reserves

Board Action Agent Project
2018 Payment 

Amount
2017 CO 096 Winnebago County Government  General Fund Subsidy  580,000$  

580,000$           

Total 2018 Allocations 4,521,068$        

2



Host Fee Fund (41700)

Multi‐Year Committments

 City of Rockford 

 Rockford Park 

District Foundation   F& G Bonds   Rock Valley College 

 Rockford Park 

District 

 Rockford Area 

Economic 

Development 

Council  

 Greater Rockford 

Airport Authority 

 Rockford Public 

School District    City of Rockford 

 BMO Harris Bank 

Centre 

  Nicholas 

Conservatory 

 Rock 39 Industrial 

Park   Aviation Program   Reclaiming First   Rockforward 20/20 

 Maintenance Repair 

Organization 

 Purpose 

Built/Fordem 

Forward 

 Barber Colman 

Village 

 Total Annual 

Payment 

Commitments 

Total Committed 8,990,000        800,000           8,467,797        1,000,000        7,000,000        500,000           10,979,109      600,000           3,200,000        41,536,906     

Initiating 

Payment Year 2007 2011 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 ‐

2018 460,000           100,000           ‐                         50,000              350,000           100,000           706,640           200,000           1,966,640       

2019 460,000           100,000           174,144           50,000              350,000           100,000           847,968           200,000           320,000           2,602,112       

2020 460,000           100,000           174,144           50,000              350,000           100,000           565,312           320,000           2,119,456       

2021 460,000           100,000           599,244           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,444,556       

2022 460,000           100,000           594,197           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,439,509       

2023 460,000           100,000           597,300           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,442,612       

2024 460,000           593,650           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,338,962       

2025 460,000           594,625           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,339,937       

2026 460,000           590,225           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           2,335,537       

2027 595,375           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           1,880,687       

2028 595,000           50,000              350,000           565,312           320,000           1,880,312       

2029 594,175           50,000              350,000           565,312           1,559,487       

2030 592,900           50,000              350,000           565,312           1,558,212       

2031 596,100           50,000              350,000           565,312           1,561,412       

2032 593,775           50,000              350,000           565,312           1,559,087       

2033 50,000              350,000           565,312           965,312          

2034 350,000           565,312           915,312          

(Credits) (800,000)          (800,000)         
Paid to Date 4,850,000        200,000           982,943           200,000           1,050,000        200,000           1,744,826        200,000           ‐                         9,427,769       
Balance Due 4,140,000        600,000           7,484,854        800,000           5,950,000        300,000           9,234,283        400,000           3,200,000        32,109,137     
Category Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Infrastructure Capital Capital Infrastructure ‐

Ord/Res 2007 CR 006 2011 CR 096 2012 CR 099 2014 CO 026 2014 CO 025 2018 CR 021 2015 CR 121 2016 CR 089 2017 CR 113 ‐

4/20/2018

jh



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT RECOMMENDATIONS

2018 HOST FEE ALLOCATIONS
2018 CR _____ April 26, 2018

HOST FEE 

SHARING

MAINTENANCE & 

EDUCATION

CAPITAL 

DEVELOPMENT

WORKFORCE 

DEVELOPMENT
INFRASTRUCTURE

COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT

TRANSFER TO 

OTHER FUNDS
RESERVE

43471 43470 43472 43473 43474 43474 49110 0117

 Architectural Services, International Women's Baseball  3,557                      Services rendered by Gary W. Anderson Architects reviewed by and 

 City of Rockford, Barber Colman Village 2018 Installment  (320,000)                      This project will not require it's initial multi‐year installment until 2019

 Economic Development District of Northern Illinois  (1,625)                    Reduction in funding to match actual invoice amount

 Illinois Department of Transportation  (27,690)                        

Reduction in funding approved in 2018 CR 021 for project approved by 

2017 CR 107 due to partial payment made in FY2017; $102,704 due in 

2018 with $32,674 refund due by New Milford

 Illinois State Association of Counties  2,072                            Statewide county association membership; larger counties involved with 

 Nicolay & Dart State Lobbying Services  30,000                         
Funds will be used to cover 2017 CO 059 approved month‐to‐month 

contract with Nicoly & Dart LLC, for lobbying services April through 

 Northern Illinois University Center for Governmental 

Studies 
10,000                         

Second half installment of strategic planning services fee previously 

approved by 2017 CR 111 and 2017 CO 059 

 Phase I Lean Implementation, Sheriff's Office  19,700                   

Sheriff's team engaged in deploying a team approach to implementing 

lean methodologies to eliminating wastes, improving services, and 

launching process improvement.  retainer $19,200, plus $500 allowable 

 Prairie Road Pump Neighborhood Association Well Study  10,000                    Additional projects costs due to unanticipated project scope

 Quickstart39, LLC  285,000                 Rock 39 Redevelopment Agreement project

 United Counties Council of Illinois  (2,500)                           First year membership discount of $2,500

 Village of New Milford  40,000                    Increase due to anticipated revenue increase

SUB‐TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

RECOMMENDATIONS BY CATEGORY
 $                 40,000   $                          ‐     $              318,257   $                 (1,625)  $                  (308,118)  $                       ‐     $                     ‐     $           ‐    48,514$                                                                                                                     

PROJECT NOTE



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 

Date: April 20, 2018 
Item: Resolution to Authorize Payment of Architectural Services Rendered 
Prepared by: Julia Halsted, Deputy County Administrator 
 

County Code: Art VI Div 3 Sec 2-346 a states, “When a capital improvement project is to be undertaken 
by the county, the county board or its authorized committee shall cause plans, specifications and 
estimates to be prepared.” 
 
2018 CO 007 states, “Host Fee funds are to be awarded for economic development initiatives, programs, 
and projects.” 
 
Associated Committee: Economic Development Committee 
 
Committee Recommendation: Economic Development Committee reviewed on April 18 and 25, 2018 
 
Background: Architectural services were rendered relative to the County Board Office’s 2015-16 
involvement in the recruitment and development of the International Women’s Baseball Center to 
Winnebago County. A balance of $7,944.43 of the original invoice of $8,912.93 remains outstanding.  
 
Gary W. Anderson Architects has agreed to accept $3,557 as payment in full due from the County.  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Economic Development Committee support this 
resolution for consideration by the Board on April 26, 2018. 
 
 



  County Board Meeting 
April 26, 2018 

R E S O L U T I O N  
of the  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Economic Development Committee 
Sponsored by:  Fred Wescott 

2018 CR __ 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE PAYMENT OF ARCHITECTURAL 
SERVICES RENDERED 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board has designated the Host Fee Fund for the 

purposes of economic development by its ordinance 2018 CO 007; 
 
WHEREAS, capital development promotes growth-oriented community investment to 

benefit Winnebago County citizens and improve well-being and quality of life in the County;  
 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County has been a sponsor and partner in recruiting and 

promoting the International Women’s Baseball Center relocation and development in Rockford, 
Illinois;  
 

WHEREAS, services were rendered by Gary W. Anderson Architects, were agreed to by 
the prior County Administration, and have been submitted for review and approval by the 
Winnebago County Board Office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the County of Winnebago enter into an agreement to pay from Host Fee 
Funds the outstanding balance of $7,944.43 at the reduced amount of $3,557.00. 

 
  



                                                                                                      Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 
 

  
 

FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 FRED WESCOTT, CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 

L.C. WILSON 
 
 
 

 L.C. WILSON 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

DAVE FIDUCCIA  DAVE FIDUCCIA 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _____________, 2018. 

 
 
                       ________________________________  
                                                                               Frank Haney, Chairman of the 
             County Board of the  
ATTEST:            County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
______________________________   
Tiana McCall, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

Winnebago County Administration 
404 Elm St., #403 
Rockford, IL 61101 

 
 

Invoice number 16-3754 
Date 04/19/2018 

 
Project International Women's Baseball Center 

Planning16-1330A 
 

   

Architectural Services for June 2016                     TERMS: Net 30                           Due Date: 05/19/2018  
    

Professional Fees  

     Hours Rate 
Billed 

Amount 
RR-Senior Project Architect    31.75 120.00 3,810.00 

Architectural / Plan Drafting 
Code Review - Zoning 
Cost Estimating - Construction 

 

Subtotal 31.75  3,810.00 
DA-Senior Architectural Designer    0.75 90.00 67.50 

Meetings - Internal Project Coordination  

Subtotal 0.75  67.50 
Professional Fees subtotal 32.50  3,877.50 

Reimbursable Expense  

     Units Rate 
Billed 

Amount 
A4 B/W prints    27.00 0.10 2.70 

Subtotal   2.70 
A4 Color prints    2.00 0.50 1.00 

Subtotal   1.00 
17x22 Plots    2.00 8.00 16.00 

Subtotal   16.00 
Reimbursable Expense subtotal   19.70 

   
 Invoice Total 3,897.20 

 GWAA Community Contribution 
 
 

           -  340.20 
 

 
 

Total Amount Requested 
 

3,557.00 
 

 
 



Sponsored by Economic Development Committee, Fred Wescott 

 
 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF  
THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2018 CR ______ 

 
 

RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORITY TO THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
BOARD CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
COMPLETE A LOAN FOR $50,000 FROM THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND  

TO SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, INC. and KEBBY INDUSTRIES, INC. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Kristi Sosnoski is the sole shareholder, of SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, 
INC., (SPARE PARTS) with the company managed by her husband Doug Sosnowski, the 
corporations president; and 
 

WHEREAS, SPARE PART is a machining subcontractor and automation field training 
support and service company which also offers mechanical engineering and design services for 
parts no longer in production, future design and manufacturing, electronic board design and 
manufacturing, as well as CNC milling and turning, and welding to aerospace specifications, and 

 
WHEREAS, a significant part of SPARE PART’s business is providing services to 

customers outside of the Winnebago County, Illinois such as Quad Graphics, RR Donnelly, The 
Boston Globe, Specialty Machine Corporation, Fermi National Accelerator Lab, NASA, Nissan 
USA, and Suburu, and also services to regional business such as UTC and Zenith Cutter; and 
 

WHEREAS, SPARE PART desires to purchase the business assets of KEBBY 
INDUSTRIES, INC.,(KEBBY) a Rockford based niche manufacturer of manual and pneumatic 
crimpers and decrimpers and related tooling for the pharmaceutical and agent testing industries; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, there is a risk that if KEBBY’s business assets are not purchased by 

SPARE PART, they could be sold to an entity outside of the Winnebago County, Illinois area 
and the six (6) jobs KEBBY currently provides in the Rockford area will be lost and the 
opportunity for the 10 ten additional jobs SPARE PART anticipates creating in the next two 
years by its acquisition of KEBBY’s assets will not occur in the Winnebago County, IL area; and 

  
WHEREAS, both SPARE PART and KEBBY demonstrated the ability to service the 

existing and proposed debt based on their existing operations on a consolidated basis, 
participation in this project is expected to result in the retention of six (6) jobs and the creation of 
ten (10) machinist jobs, Mr. Sosnowski, the manager of SPARE PART, is a skilled machinist 
and appears to be a capable manager based on the growth of SPARE PART since its inception in 
2003, and the purchase of KEBBY’s business assets is considered attractive in relation to its cash 
flow; and 



2 
 

 
WHERAS, Doug Sosnowski has formed FP Development LLC which owns the two 

industrial properties his companies occupy and may become the owner of the current KEBBY 
real property; and 
 

WHERAS, pursuant to a Management Agreement between Winnebago County (County) 
and Rockford Local Development Corporation (RLDC) concerning loans from the Revolving 
Loan Fund of the County of Winnebago, RLDC and the RLDC Board of Directors; RLDC 
recommends the County of Winnebago make a loan of $50,000 from the Revolving Loan Fund 
at 7.0 percent to be fully amortized over ten (10) years to SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, INC. and 
KEBBY INDUSTRIES, INC. as co-borrowers, secured by a real estate mortgage on KEBBY’s 
real property and a lien on the business assets of KEBBY as well as personal guarantees from 
Doug and Kristi Sosnowski and a company guarantee from FP Development LLC and keyman 
life insurance on Doug Sosnowski in the amount of $2 million. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois is hereby authorized to execute the loan documents prepared 
by Rockford Local Development Corporation and approved by the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney’s Office for the loan of $50,000.00 to SPARE PART SOLUTIONS, INC. and KEBBY 
INDUSTRIES, INC. as co-borrowers, at seven (7.0) percent fully amortized over ten (10) years 
from the Revolving Loan Fund such loan shall be secured by a real estate mortgage on the 
property currently occupied by KEBBY, a lien on the business assets of Kebby and a personal 
guarantee from Kristi and Doug Sosnowski as well as company guarantees from Spare Part and 
FP Development LLC and Keyman life insurance on Doug Sosnowski in the amount of two (2) 
million dollars. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this resolution to the Winnebago  
County Planning and Economic Development Director and the Winnebago County State’s 
Attorney’s Office – Civil Division. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 
       Respectfully submitted,   

                                                          ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
PRO      CON 
  
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Fred Wescott     Fred Wescott    
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Jean Crosby     Jean Crosby 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia     Dave Fiduccia 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Dorothy Redd     Dorothy Redd 
 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
L.C. Wilson     L.C. Wilson 
 
 
 
 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, on the ______ day of _________________, 2018. 
 

 
 

      ___________________________________ 
      Frank Haney, Chairman of the County   
      Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Tiana McCall, Clerk of the County of Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



3444
PRECISION

DR

3387
PRECISION

DR

5652
INTERNATIONAL

DR

3415
PRECISION

DR

3447
PUBLISHERS

DR

3337
PUBLISHERS

DR

5521
INTERNATIONAL

DR

3412
PRECISION

DR

3374
PRECISION

DR

5608
INTERNATIONAL

DR

5560
INTERNATIONAL

DR

5663
INTERNATIONAL

DR

56
91

IN
TE

RN
AT

IO
NA

L
DR

5549
INTERNATIONAL

DR

5635
INTERNATIONAL

DR

5536
INTERNATIONAL

DR

16-04-451-005 16-04-451-012

16-04-453-003

16-04-452-002

16-04-452-005

16-04-452-004

16-04-451-003

16-04-452-006

16-04-453-009

16-04-453-006 16-04-453-007

16
-0

4-4
53

-00
8

16-04-453-001

16-04-452-003

16-04-451-018

16-04-451-011

16-04-453-002

International Dr

Pr
ec

isi
on

 D
r

/
The Winnebago County computerized aerial base property maps were assembled using
County, State and other data. The map files are not intended to be the official survey of
the land. The official land records are on file in the Winnebago County Recorder's Office. 1 inch = 80 feet

_̂

Created Date: 4/20/2018

PIN: 16-04-453-001



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Kebby Industries Inc. & Spare Parts Solutions Inc. 

 

 
4/25/ 2018    [ 1 / 2 ] 

Applicant: PIN: 16-04-453-001 

Kebby Industries Inc. (Co-borrower) 

Spare Parts Solutions Inc. (Co-borrower)  
 

Location Address: County Board District: 15 

3374 Precision Drive 

Rockford, IL 61109 

  

 
 
 

Requested County Revolving Loan Fund: Projected Employees Growth: 10 machinists positions 
over the next 2 years 

$50,000 @ 7.0% interest for 10 years 
Full-Time:  

Part Time:  

Owner’s Investment: Job Retention: 6 

$50,000   

Total Financing of Project: Others Investing  

$1,650,000 
Stillman BancCorp 
Illinois Finance Authority 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Uses of Loan Proceeds: 

 
Purchase business assets of Kebby Industries, manufacturer of manual and pneumatic crimpers and 
decrimpers  and related tooling for pharmaceutical and agent testing industries 

 
 
 
 
Description of Business & Project: 
Spare Parts Solutions Inc. ("SPSI") is a subcontract machining, fabrication and assembly 

company.  SPSI , also serves in the controls and automation field suppling service and support.  A 

female-owned business, SPSI was formed in 2003.  The business is owned exclusively by Kristi 

Sosnowski and is managed by her husband, Doug Sosnowski who is the company's President.  ISO 

9000-2008 compliant, SPSI offers mechanical engineering and design services, reverse engineering for 

parts no longer in production, fixture design and manufacturing, electronic board design and 

manufacturing, CNC milling and turning, and welding to aerospace specifications.    



 Revolving Loan Fund  
Loan Summary for: 

Kebby Industries Inc. & Spare Parts Solutions Inc. 

 

 
4/25/ 2018    [ 2 / 2 ] 

 

Other Conditions:  Personal guarantee from Kristi and Douglas Sosnowski.  Company guarantees from 

SPSI and FP Development LLC.  Keyman life insurance on Doug Sosnowski for $2 million. 

 
 
  
 
RLDC Recommendation: 
Staff recommends a $50,000 loan to Winnebago County for the following reasons:  
 
1) SPSI and Kebby have demonstrated the ability to service existing and proposed debt based on 

existing operations on a consolidated basis; 
 

2) Participation in this project is expected to contribute to the retention of six (6) jobs and the creation 
of ten (10) machinists jobs;  

 
3) Mr. Sosnowski is a skilled machinist and appears to be a capable manager based on SPSI's 

profitable growth since its inception in 2003;  
 
4) Participation in this project benefits a number of policy objectives including assisting a small 

manufacturer, an exporter, a female-owned business and job creation in a labor surplus area; and  
 

5) The Kebby purchase price is a multiple of 4.5X average operating cash flow (adjusted) for the past 
four years.  This multiple is considered attractive given the company’s proprietary products in a 
niche industry with consistent revenues and earnings, its growth potential and synergies with SPSI. 

 
 

 



��������� ��		
�������	�����
����
������
�������
�������	����������
����� ��!"����
����
�#$�	����#�������
���%#��!�&��'(�)�����*+���� ���,-./0-1230452678592:;57<=;5;230452678592>=?5;@-<0;20A2B<<5<<45.C<92DEFGHIJKLFMN OFGHEPJQFRJSETFMPUJVWGJOFGHEPJXYZ[EGJ\]̂_̀^̀ab̂__\2c-5d26;0?5;Ce2@-72,-.fg>2hPMHiJjEGEJTWJOFkJ[kJhGElMTJhFGlJWGJmNPMNEJhIEHiJ2OPEFUEJHIWWUEJTIEJTFRJkEFGJkWYJnWYPlJPMiEJTWJoMEnJlETFMPUJVWGp2qrst 2uvwxyvz{|}~x�}���{v��}x����x~vw|�x�vzv��|x�}x����22��}|�x����|�� uvw����x����|���62��c���6���:2��� �62��c���6���:2�����t�26���g>g��2�� ��t�26���g>g��2�����������2g�2�ssr  ���������g�2�ssr 2¡¡¡¡¡¡x¢���~x�}�~v��{|}~¡¡¡¡¡¡ ¡¡¡¡¡¡x£|¤�}�x�}�~v��{|}~¡¡¡¡¡¡�=52�7C5¥2222�¦§¦qrs§ �=52�7C5¥2222 ¦t¦qrs§2222B40=.C¥2222� t�̈rt 2222B40=.C¥2222� t�̈rt2222265.71Ce¥22222222r̈rr 2222265.71Ce¥22222222r̈rr222222222�0<C¥22222222r̈rr 222222222�0<C¥22222222r̈rr2:0C712�=5¥2222� t�̈rt 2:0C712�=5¥2222� t�̈rt67-©¥2222222�7C5¥222 67-©¥2222222�7C5¥222ªe¥22 ªe¥2222¢��xyv�¤|�x����|��«xxx¬¬�xy®̄°�£��±x²®uvwx°v�¤³�v��}²|�¤�����} 2 �{�³}~ª07;©20A2�5@-5d2B<<5<<5©2c71=5 2  �qt�:0d.<́-?2�µ=71-¶7·0.2�7/C0; 2̧ s̈rrrrª07;©20A2�5@-5d2�µ=71-¶5©2c71=5 ¹2  �qt�30452g4?;0@545.C2�̧54?·0. º2 r�-<7»15©2c5C5;7.2�̧54?·0. º2 r



��������� ��		
�������	�����
����
������
�������
�������	����������
����� ��!"����
����
�#$�	����#�������
���%#��!�&��'(�)�����*+���� ���,-./012-3145647-8-39-4:;;-;;-<4=/>9- ?4 @ABCDE5931F4G9>H.>I-0 J4 KLMMMM7-8I;-<4NO9/>IP-<4=/>9- ?4 @ABCDQ-3I504R0--P-4NJ-2.H53 S4 MR:RT=:R4NJ-2.H53 S4 MUV3-04UWW9.I-<4NJ-2.H53 S4 MU8-04DX4NJ-2.H53 S4 MY-V4,I;/Z>-<4504=-1-0/34NJ-2.H53 S4 M7-1903I3[4=-1-0/34NJ-2.H53 S4 M\/J/Z>-4=/>9- ?4 @ABCD\/J47/1-46504\/J4E5<-44KBC J4 K]L@XC@E/>W9>/1-<4\/J ?4 K̂A@XBLK]Y534:<4=/>50-24S _4 M̂LMM:Z/1-2-31; S4 M̂LMM\U\:̀4\:a4,bNc ?4 K̂A@XBLK]defghiegjklhmenokphhh4BC@qDM rstthuvoenfwkxhmenokphhh4Myezf{|h}~xfk�he{xh�elk�yezf{|h}~x� �elk yez��YYN�:�U4EUbY\� KLMXqC @̂qCLXARU7NQ\4�7NQN7=N MLKKqB K̂KMLBXE�N77�4=:̀ Ǹ�4\U�YQ��� MLK]MK K̂AMLDq7UE�RU7,4E�\� ALBXKC ÂMAALMD7UE�RU7,4�:7�4,�Q\7�E\ KLKACK K̂MDMLD]7UE�47�=N74�:\N747NE MLBM]M K̂@MLBq7UE�RU7,4E�\�4̀��7:7� MLXM@K ]̂C]LqC�7N:\N747�R,4:�7�U7\ MLKKMB K̂MBLC@7UE�RU7,4QE�UÙ4,�Q\4BMX CLD]@D ĈKAXLB]EUGGbY�\�4EÙ Ǹ�N4XKK MLXMXA ]̂CKLABE�N77�4=:̀ Ǹ�4\�Q�47U:, MLBCA@ B̂XXL]q��������hu{xh~�h�kenhu�lelkhyezh�{�~g�e�~{h��������4\5.4564�/[-44Q-/0W�4:[/I3



��������� ��	
������������������	������������������������������������������������������ ������� ���!"#$"#%&'"()*'+,)-,&%'+)#,$"#&)*./0)(12304 5����6��),78.89)(:20 ;
<	=�
<	>�;��?>@�A;B�@A��)C8:81D <�>@E=),78.89)&9F0 ��	
�	<>@�A )&9F0)GH)!G4F ��I=;>@��J�<)'7KG4FG4:8.G7)-:80L-G20D8.KM ���������N )C8:80 @��@A�@;)%O078)(:20 ��?P�<;�
<?�;�;A�Q;R@ )%O078)!S:7O0)-:80 �5��������)%O078)C84008)%TT40DD 6��6��=J�=��=A��	 )$40D.T078)(:20)U)%TT40DD ��?P�<;�;�;A�Q;R@�6��6�=J�=��=A��	@E=�	��R��	�5���V)%O078)!.89 	��R��	� )C0K408:49)(:20)U)%TT40DD E<�<A>)%O078)W.F 5���V )-14:8.G7)-:80 
=	
=>?<�)%771:/)#0FG48)*./.7O-:80 �N�������� )*G4)X0:4 ����)%DD120T)(:20 <�>@E=��Q<	���A��I<�Y@A@AP�<�>@E=��
	=;;�
<	>�;��?>@�A;�<�>@E=���<�=Z�<?>�I<>@�A�<�>@E=��@A>=P	<�I<�Y@A=�	��[� ��������;������;���� ;�����������\�������\�P��]�;�� ]� ��\���
[����������L"70)!048.H.K:80)F04)&4:7D:K8.G7M"&̂ ,#)C,#_'!,C�����<  [���	�����<]���� ��<��[̀ �]�A�̀ �<���������\�<̀ � ]̀ � ��=\\���� ��<�A�̀ ����� ����� ����\�	��������]�<�� ��� ]����	��������]��\\����<]]�����



��������� ��	
������������������	������������������������������������������������������ ������� ���!"#$"#%&'"()*'+,)-,&%'+)#,$"#&)*./0)(12304 5����56�),78.89)(:20 ;<==>�?@�ABC	?<BD�?@��)E8:81F G�C?H<),78.89)&9I0 ��	
�	GC?�@ )&9I0)JK)!J4I ��L<BC?��=�G)'7MJ4IJ4:8.J7)-:80N-J20F8.MO �5��P��P�6 )E8:80 ?��?@�?B)%Q078)(:20 R<�	R<�SGL
?��B )%Q078)!T:7Q0)-:80 �5��5�����)%Q078)E84008)%UU40FF ����V�BCGC<�BCD�BC<���� )$40F.U078)(:20)W)%UU40FF 	?�SG	��;�<==<LG@���X5;?�=A	@�GH<@A<	��;��	��6����)%Q078)!.89 	��;��	� )E0M408:49)(:20)W)%UU40FF 	?�SG	��;�<==<LG@�BGL<)%Q078)Y.I 6���� )-14:8.J7)-:80 
<	
<CAG�)%771:/)#0IJ48)*./.7Q-:80 ���������� )*J4)Z0:4 ����	��[� ��������B������B���� 
[������������\�������\�R��]�B�� ]� �����N"70)!048.K.M:80)I04)&4:7F:M8.J7O"&̂ ,#)E,#_'!,E�����G  [���	�����G]���� ��G��[̀ �]�@�̀ �G���������\�G̀ � ]̀ � ��<\\���� ��G�@�̀ ����� ����� ����\�	��������]�G�� ��� ]����	��������]��\\����G]]����� =G�;�C���>=<	�	?H<?��?@�?B���L�S�L<�
GR<



��������� ����	
������������
��������
	���������������
	��
	���������������������
	������� ����� !""#$%&�'(�)*&+,�-.&�/01/23� "#$4%&,�567�8.&%9%6%&*#�)*&+,�-.&/6:%#3� "#$4%&,;<�=>?@AB�C>>DEFG�<>A�H�I>C?JE>FJ>�=>?A�IKHAB�KHAJI�FBBLIM�=>?NHOB�<>?FL�EJ�HJ�PKHAB�QHAJP>C?JE>FIM�;FRST��UB�RHAA=�HR>VKCBJB�KA>L?RJ�CEFB�><ABKCHRBVBFJ�KHAJI�<>A�WFDBCXIKCERBAIS���YBJ�?I�NBCK�C>RHJB=>?A�KHAJ�J>LH=TZ�KHAJEHC�CEIJ�><�>?A�EFOBFJ>A=EFRC?LBI�JNB�<>CC>[EFG\]BHAEFGI]BCJIĈ?JRN�KHAJI]AHDB�KHAJIPKEFLCB�[BCLVBFJIQFB?VHJERI�_HEA�R=CEFLBAIMOHCOBIM�ABG?CHJ>AIMHRRBII>AEBÌPELBCH=�V>J>AI>̂ABINH<J�KHAJIWCBRJA>FERI�_REAR?EJ�a>HALIMK>JBFJE>VBJBAIM�KN>J>�B=BIb�IBFI>AIM�KA>cEVEJ=IBFI>AIM�R>FJHRJ�aC>RD�KHAJIMJBAVEFHC�aC>RD�KHAJIM�ABCH=IMI[EJRNBIM�<?IBIM�REAR?EJaABHDBAIM�R>FJA>CCBAIMR>VK?JBAIM�BFRC>I?ABIMJAHFI<>AVBAIM�RHKHREJ>AIM�>OBAC>HLIM�ABIEIJ>AI�HFLV>AB̀Q>[BA�I?KKC=�a>HALIdEHGF>IJER�KHFBCIeBHAIf>EIJ�LAEOBAI�HFL�V>J>AIf>EIJ�C>GER�a>HALf>EIJ�R>FJA>C�K?IN�a?JJ>FIHFL�V>J>A�IJHAJBAIY>HL�RBCCIZRRBCBAHJ>A�V>J>AI�HFLRC?JRN�HIIBVaC=ZRRBCBAHJ>A�HIIBVaC=�KFB?VHJER�HRJ?HJ>AIQHKBA�A>CC�HRRBCBAHJ>A�aBCJ�HFL�LAEOB�HIIBVaC=?̂IJ>VgVHRNEFBL�ABKCHRBVBFJ�KHAJIh>CCBA�KHAJI�_A>CCBA�INH<JIM�A>CCBAÌhBG?CHJ>A�I>CBF>EL�OHCOBIdBCAEF�N>CL�L>[F�[NBBCI�HFL�R>AB�INH<J�I?KK>AJ[NBBCISiHaI�b�iHKBSSS�HFL�V?RNM�V?RN�V>ABT�jklmnopqrstuvwxykz{mn|otu}~z�skomwzkstopx�su�o|ykum�m�pokm}�|�tmn|otu�pzzkounxkr�|t�su�|s��xkqmn|otu�~�o|qku�puum�m�|oo�ummmmmnokuumn|otum�pxt|stm�u�p�k



��������� ����	
������������
��������
	���������������
	��
	���������������������
	������� ����� !"#$%$&�#&'( )�'%*�+ ,#-�'. /0+&$ &10& �2!��)&1� �2/�!&0&%"#$ "3 "4+ !4$&"5�+$6 74+/+"3�$$%"#0' $&033 %$ �08�+ &" 1�'/ ("4 3%#) &1�/0+&$ ("4 #��) 0& &1� 9�$& /"$$%9'� /+%!�6  74+ %#*�#&"+( %$ �2&�#$%*�6  :0'' 4$ &")0( 0& ;<<<=>?@AB??BC 0#) D�E'' 8�& +%81& &" D"+- "# ("4+ #�2&"+)�+ 3"+ 1%81AF40'%&(C !"$& �33�!&%*� /0+&$ 3"+ ("4+$/'%!�+ 0#) /+�$$ 50!1%#�$6  74+ /+"3�$$%"#0'C!"4+&�"4$ &�!1#%!%0#$ 0+�  +�0)( &" &0-� ("4+ !0''6GHIJKLHIJMLGNOPMQNRGSLQTUVLLLLLLLLLWXXXYLZ[\]̂[[̂ LLLLLLLLLLU_T̀aÙbcdaefdaèc_gh̀i_TcVU_j:"/(+%81&k Bll>C mnm o#!6



��������� ���	
���
��	���
	�����������������������������	������
�����������	��	
	
	������������
 ����� !""#$%&�'(�)*&+,�-.&�/01/23� "#$4%&,�567�8.&%/69%#3� "#$4%&�/#%4+&.6$4,:;�<=>;�?;@ABC;?�=C?�;CBAC;;D;?�E;FF;DD;GH=I;J;CF�EK=D?@�LKD�MKND�OCP;HQ�@GHAI;D@R��SNDF;@F�=C?�D;G=AD�@;D>AI;�<;HG@�@=>;�MKN�JKC;M�EMJ=PACB�@AJGH;�D;G=AD@�FK�;H;IFDKCAI@�F<=F�J=M�E;>;DM�IK@FHM�FK�D;GH=I;�KNFDAB<FRSND�;H;IFDAI=H�;CBAC;;D@�=D;�=EH;�FK�F;@F�=C?�D;G=AD=HH�F<;�EK=D?@�N@;?�AC�F<;�OCP;HQ�TNFKU;E�=C?OCP;HQ�V;DK@G;;?�JK?;H�@GHAI;D@R� ��WG=D;�X=DF�WKHNFAKC@�<=@?;@ABC;?�=C?�;CBAC;;D;?=�@GHAI;D�EK=D?�F<=F;YI;;?@�SOZ@G;IALAI=FAKC@R�������:;�=H@K�@NGGHM�[KA@F�\DA>;D�=C?]KBAI�̂K=D?@R ����:;�I=C�@NGGHM�=HH�MKND_̀ �>KHF�XKU;D�WNGGHMC;;?@R����SND�OH;IFDAI=H�OCBAC;;D@�=D;�=EH;�FK�F;@F�=C?�D;G=AD:=DC;DQ�ZaWb_cd�Oe�IKCFDKH@�LKD�=�LD=IFAKC�KL�F<;IK@F�KL�C;UR���fghijklmnopqrstugvwijxkpqyzv{ogkisvgopklt{oq|kxugqi}i~lkgiy�x�pijxkpq�lvvgkqjtgn�xp{oq�xo�{tgmijxkpq�z�kxmgq�lqqi}i�xkk{qiiiiijkgqqijxkpqi~ltpxopi�q�l�g



��������� ���	
���
��	���
	�����������������������������	������
�����������	��	
	
	������������
 ����������� !"#$ !"%$�&'(%)&*�+$),-.$$$$$$$$$/0001$23456336$$$$$$$$$$-7,89-8:;<9=><9=8;7?@8A7,;.-7BCDEFGHIJKL�MNNOP�QRQ�STUV



��������� ���	
������
��������������������������
���������������������	
������ ���� !"##$%&' () *+',- ./' 012034 !#$%5&'- 678 9/'&:'+;&- < =/'&->+),*+',-?@A�BC�CDE@�FGB�HGI@F�GI�FGBJI@KA�LJDM@�J@NODP@H@IA�GJBNQJDR@�NJGS@PAT��UBJPGIE@IV@IA�C@JEVP@�NJGEVR@C�FGBPGHNO@A@�DPP@CC�AG�DOO�AW@�LJDM@NDJAC�FGB�I@@RT�X@�PDJJF�XDJI@J�@O@PAJVP�LJDM@CDIR�YGIADOEG�NI@BHDAVPLJDM@CT��X@�CAGPM�LJDM@PGIAJGOO@JCZ�OGDR�P@OOCZ�HDQI@ACZDJHDABJ@CZ�DIR�HBPW�HGJ@T��UBJ�C@O@PAVGI�G[�PGJ@CWD[A�NDJACVIPOBR@C�WV\W�\BDOVAF�PGJ@CWD[ANGCVAVGI�]W@@OCZ�WGOR�RG]I]W@@OCZ�DVJ�PFOVIR@JCZ�DIRHGJ@T��̂[�FGB�DJ@�OGGMVIQ�[GJ�DPGIE@IV@IA�CGOBAVGI�AG�J@NODPVIQFGBJ�PGICADIA�]@DJ�VA@HCZ�]@PDI�W@ON_J̀DM@�JGAGJCaJHDABJ@�[DP@�bc�VIPW�d�beVIPWfVCAGI�DCC@HLOF�g�DVJ�LJDM@J̀DM@�PDOVN@JCJ̀DM@HGAGJ�g�WGVCAJ̀DM@�@KWDBCA�[DIhGVA�MVAiGOVIGVR�MVAJ̀DM@�NDRjJVPAVGI�NDRYk̀ ĝ �̂̀JDM@CYk̀ ĝ�̀JDM@CfI@BHDAVP�LJDM@�NDRC?GDR�P@OOChGJ@CWD[A�ABL@ChGJ@CWD[A�OBQChGJ@CWD[A�RJVE@�@IR�DCC@HLOFYDO@lj@HDO@�iNOVI@CaPPBJDA@OF�HDPWVI@R�IGC@�PGI@CmIM@On�PGJ@CWD[A@̀DJVIQ�alXTTT�DIR�HBPWZ�HBPW�HGJ@_��opqrstuvwxyz{|}~p��rs�tyz����xptr|�pxytu}�xz�t�~pzr�r�utpr����yrs�tyz�u��ptzs}pw��y�xz��x��}pvrs�tyz���t�vpz�uzzr�r��tt�zrrrrrstpzzrs�tyzr�u}y�xyr�z�u�p



��������� ���	
������
��������������������������
���������������������	
������ ���� !"#$%&$'(!)"#*"&+'&$*#%&,""-.//" *"'(0.)".'"12223456785589".$0":&;//"<&'"!#<='"'(":(!>"($")( !"$&+'(!0&!"?(!"=#<=7@ ./#')9"A(*'"&??&A'#%&"B!.>&"C.!'*.$0"A(!&*=.?'"C.!'*"?(!")( !"*C/#A&!"D.A=#$&*,EFGHIJFGHKJELMNKOLPEQJORSTJJJJJJJJJUVVVWJXYZ[\YY\JJJJJJJJJJS]R̂_Ŝ`ab_cdb_ĉa]ef̂g]RaTS]h-(C)!#<='i"8jj49"klk"m$A,



��������� ����	
���
������	
�������	���������������
	��
���������������
���	
������ �������  !"#$�%&�'($)*�+,$�-./-01�� !"2#$*�345�6,$#7(2��89�." 9�:5!#$9�345�;�8 <,!!#$*�=>>?�@ABCDCEFG�BHDI�>J�KHDLLMG�HEN�O?CEIBP@�H?P�HBB@CFE@�>J�O>?E�?>BBP?@Q��RP�DHE�SPBA�T>L�IPPA�T>L??>BBP?@�CE�PUDPBBPEV�@SHAPQ��RP�D>EKPECPEVBT�@V>DIHBB�VTAP@�>J�?>BBP?@�VSHV�H?P�L@PN�OCVS�T>L?PWLCAMPEVQ��X>EYV�BPV�T>L?�MHDSCEP@�OPH?�N>OEZPDHL@P�>J�ZHN�?>BBP?@Q�[PV�L@�@LAABT�T>L�OCVSSCFS\WLHBCVTG�B>EF\BCJP�?>BBP?@QRCVS�>L?�@APDCHB�?>BBP?�?PD>KP?T�A?>F?HMG�T>LHBOHT@�SHKP�H�EPO�?>BBP?�HKHCBHZBP�CMMPNCHVPBTOSPE�T>L�EPPN�CVQ��RP�?PD>MMPEN�T>L�ZLT�VO>?>BBP?@�VSP�JC?@V�VCMP�T>L�>?NP?�J?>M�L@Q��RSPE�>EP?>BBP?�ZPFCE@�V>�OPH?�N>OEG�T>L�DHE�?PABHDP�CV�HEN@PEN�CV�ZHDI�V>�L@Q��]L?�VPDSECDCHE@�OCBB�@V?CA�N>OEVSP�?>BBP?G�?P\MHDSCEP�CVG�HEN�?P\D>HV�CVG�HBB�J>?�>EBT_̂̀�VSP�A?CDP�>J�VSP�>?CFCEHB�?>BBP?Q��aHET�>J�>L?DL@V>MP?@�SHKP�J>LEN�VSC@�?>BBP?�?PD>KP?T�A?>F?HMV>�ZP�H�F?PHV�NPHBG�HEN�CV�SH@�@HKPN�VSPM�H@CFECJCDHEV�HM>LEV�>J�M>EPTQ]L?�CEKPEV>?T�C@�PUVPE@CKPQ��bHBB�L@�V>NHT�HV�cdddefgh\̀gg̀ G�HEN�OPYBB�FPV�?CFSV�V>�O>?I�>E�T>L?�EPUV>?NP?�J>?�SCFS\WLHBCVTG�D>@V�PJJPDVCKP�?>BBP?@�HENHDDP@@>?CP@�J>?�T>L?�@ABCDP?�MHDSCEP@Qijklmnopqrstuvwxjyzlm{nst|}y~rjnlvyjrsnow~rt�n{xjtl�l�onjl|�{�slm{nst�oyyjntmwjq�{s~rt�{r�~wjplm{nst�}�n{pjt�ottl�l�{nn~tlllllmnjttlm{nstl�ows{rsl�t�o�j



��������� ���	
��������������������������������	�������
����	
�������
� ����������� !�"#�$%!&'�()!�*+,*-.�����/ !'�012�3)! $1 �4%&�/�5)1&!)��5)4�)1 1&'67�89::;�9�<=>7�?7@78A=BC�BD�EC7FG9A=8�E9:A?�9C>9887??B:=7?�DB:�;BF:�HCI7@J�?E@=87:?K��67�?AB8I�9=::7LF@9AB:?M�?B@7CB=>�N9@N7?M�9=:�8;@=C>7:?M�9C>L9FL7?K��67�9@?B�O9N7�E=?ABC�I=A?M�?=>7@9;�N9@N7?M@=DA�EF?O�8;@=C>7:?M�P7@A�>:=N7�9=:�8;@=C>7:?M8BGE:7??=BC�8BCC78AB:?M�:7@=7D�N9@N7?M�9C>�GF8OGB:7KQF:�=CN7CAB:;�=?�7RA7C?=N7K��67�89C�O7@E�;BF@B89A7�AO7�E9:A�;BF�C77>�SF=8I@;T�U9@@�F?�AB>9;�9AVWWWX�YZ[\]ZZ]M�9C>�<7̂@@�L7A�:=LOA�AB�<B:I�BC;BF:�C7RA�B:>7:�DB:�O=LO\SF9@=A;M�8B?A�7DD78A=N7EC7FG9A=8�E9:A?�DB:�;BF:�HCI7@J�?E@=87:�G98O=C7?K�$0_*�$0_̀ ��"-à b"+�c�b1/d���������efffg�hijkliil����������/)1&%/&m'�%! �%!&')��&�)1'd/)4UBE;:=LOAn�]ooYM�pqp�rC8Kstuvwxyz{|}~����t��vw�x}~����|txv��t|}xy��|~�x��t~v�v�yxtv����}vw�x}~�y��tx~w�t{��}�|~��|���tzvw�x}~���x�zt~�y~~v�v��xx�~vvvvvwxt~~vw�x}~v�y�}�|}v�~�y�t



��������� ���	
��������	������������������������
�����������	
��������	��� ��������� !"#�$%�&'#()�*+#�,-.,/0��� !1"#)�234�5+#"6!78�9�' !(:�5'18!3"4&'#();<�=>?<�@AB=CDE<�FG<H@E@CAI>H=@A@AJ�H>F>K@L@M@<E�N=@H=>LLCNE�DE�MC�FGCODH<�=@J=BPD>L@MQ�F>GME�>M�HCEMB<RR<HM@?<FG@H<ES��TDG�LCN�FG@H<E�FGC?@O<QCD�@AEM>AM�G<L@<R�RGCI�=@J=LQ<UF<AE@?<�TVW�F>GMEX�>AO�F>GMEM=>M�>G<�=>GO�MC�R@AOSTDG�<UF<G@<AH<O�M<H=A@H@>AE�>G<G<>OQ�MC�NCGY�CA�QCDG�HDEMCIF>GME�CGO<GS��Z>LL�DE�MCO>Q[��\=<RCLLCN@AJ�@E�>�L@EM�CR�ECI<�CR�M=<F>GME�M=>M�N<�>G<�>KL<�MCI>ADR>HMDG<�@AB=CDE<]@̂HY<G�>HMD>MCG_<LG@A�N=<<LED̀IF<GEZ>I�RCLLCN<GEa=>RMEb<>GEaFL@A<cDLL<QEaFG@AJEX�;>E=<GEX�>AOD̀E=@AJEdC@EM�FDLL<QEcL>M<EaF>H<GE;=<<L�>EE<IKL@<EÂ@?<ESSS�>AO�IDH=X�IDH=�ICG<[��efghijklmnopqrstfuvhiwjopxyuznfjhrufnojksznp{jwtfph|h}kjfhx~w�ohiwjop�kuufjpisfm�woznp�wn~zsflhiwjop�y�jwlfp�kpph|h�wjjzphhhhhijfpphiwjoph}ksownoh�p�k�f



��������� ���	
��������	������������������������
�����������	
��������	��� ��������� �!"#�$��!�%&&&'�()*+,)),-��.#�/01���20!3425!�!"�/"36�".�$"�3�.07!�"3#03�8"3�5425+9���4!$-:" !�0880:!4;0�30<��:0=0.!�<�3! �8"3�$"�3� <�4:03=�:54.0 >?@ABCD@ABED?FGHEIFJ?KDILMNDDDDDDDDDOPPPQDRSTUVSSVDDDDDDDDDDMWLXYMXZ[\Y]̂\Y]X[W_̀XaWL[NMWb�"<$3425!c�,dd(-�efe�g.:>



��������� ���	
��������������
	��
	������������������	���	
������� ���������� !"�#$�%&"'(�)*"�+,-+./���� 0!"(�123�4*"!5�6"&3!(�)*"�7*�"�+28!�/�4&09 2!(:;�<=>�?;@A�BCD�EF;>GEHB�DAIJ=F;K�=>FELAJCM;L;>GK�G?=G�NE@@�?;@A�BCD�I;G�O;GG;J;HHE<E;><B�HJCL�BCDJ�;PDEAL;>GQR;IEKG;J�SCJJ;<GEC>�:?;;@�TKK;LO@B�HCJ�UCDJ�VJ;KKWE>;XCEKG�S?=E>�YAIJ=F;�ZEGT<<;@;J=GCJ�YAIJ=F;K[DJ�E>M;>GCJB�EK�;\G;>KEM;Q��S=@@�DK�GCF=B�=G�]̂^̂ _àbcdaade�=>F�N;f@@�I;G�JEI?G�GC�NCJg�C>�BCDJ�>;\GCJF;J�HCJ�?EI?cPD=@EGBe�<CKG�;HH;<GEM;�DAIJ=F;�gEGKHCJ�BCDJ�L=<?E>;Kh��%1i+�%1ij��#.5jk#,�l�k20m���������nooop�qrsturru����������0*2'&0'v(�&"!�&"'(*��' *2(m0*wSCABJEI?Gx�dyỳ e�zVz�{><Q|}~�������������}�������������}����}������������}�������}����������������}����}�������������}�������������}���������������������}����������������������}



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& ����,-./012345..6./78924:;<=>?@ABC<DAA.2739E 4F2739EG0124HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901KR4K45SS4T30Q-9/.UVWXYZ?[\,7/2]03P6̂7S4_297II234TS623.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/bkR4HkRG78Q4,361I23.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/bgR4HcnR_29361I23.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/bjR4HonRT82-17/694,361I68]4p00S.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/blcRHloRq289E4,361I23.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/blrR4HonRT0L234,361I23.4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97/blhR4HlhRs-89/608,361I234HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgmI30Q-9/te-89/608booR4HukR_297II234HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgmI30Q-9/te-89/608bolRHcgR,361I68]478Q4_297II68]4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgmI30Q-9/te-89/608bugR4HcR,7I4F27S4F6v2r114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bclR4HllRll114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bcnR4HllRlc114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bohR4HlgRon114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2borR4HlgRor114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bojR4HlcRcn114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bogR4HhRco114HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2bocR4HjR5SS4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K./032ME/1S̀Fa_b8c9defgO3hQ/18i1Ih..ej7klgm97It.27St.6v2burR4HcR4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901KR6̂2L4,73/44HK9E29N0-/K973/KRwP45990-8/4HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K9-./0123K7990-8/KRx0]4a84HE//I.JKKLLLMN2OOP68Q-./362.M901K9-./0123K7990-8/KS0]68KRy



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& ����,-./01233/456/4.7.894:5-89;4<5=;33><?00@@@AB4CCD-8EF<37-4<A92G0<3274A;3G/HIJKL8M9NOPQC7RE3G8SG>R<<OT.:UQVP-./WC233/4W9/4.7.894LXXY5=MYR5-89;4<5=;33><?00@@@AB4CCD-8EF<37-4<A92G0<3274A;3G/HIJKL8M9NOPQC7RE3G8SG>R<<OT.:UQVP-./WC233/4W9/4.7.894LX:Y5=MYZ[[\]̂_̀abcde235<F7452O5D2F759.>5<-f4H56/-9B5g474A5=074<2F794<09.>h<-f4<h.8Eh<3D/4<i6.>I-f4Y=;33><?00@@@AB4CCD-8EF<37-4<A92G0<32740;.8Eh97-G>47hjGGA;3G/Yklm̀\n̂opqr̂s\tppuvccqdwxxyyyz{r||}om̀adĉordzb_pxdc_̂rxvlm̀~b̂opqr̂~tppzvcp[��URQA��]l̂c�5�j��Uh��h6�U� =;33><?00@@@AB4CCD-8EF<37-4<A92G0<32740/.C27.327Dh97-G>47hjGGh@2h�7-><A;3G/Y�l|_̂lc_̂}\n̂opqr̂s\tpp\yocv_ac\�̂oqduvccqdwxxyyyz{r||}om̀adĉordzb_pxdc_̂rx[l|_̂lc_̂}~b̂opqr̂~tpp~y_~�̂oqdzvcp[���X�A��]l̂c�5�j��Uh��h6�X�



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& "���,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C>=9@/6=CD@@C39.-CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOKPQRSKTNUQQNVPLWNXKPRYZWLLRY[\\VVV]̂SIIMP_̀aYLKPSY]bJQ\YLJKS\cHIJKHLJKMdbKPQRSKdUQQdVPLWdXKPRY]WLQcefghg4iijHKLkliDiimCiiCniop ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62;6>=9@/6=CD@@4-.@AFqSbKPQRSKTNUQQZWLLRY[\\VVV]̂SIIMP_̀aYLKPSY]bJQ\YLJKS\̀SbKPQRSKdUQQ]WLQcefmrs4iijHKLkliDiimCiiCtimp



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& ����,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C;6>=9@/6=CD@@C39.-?<.CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOPQKRSTPKUNVSSNWRLXJYLNZKRT[\XLLT[]̂̂WWW_̀PIIMRabY[LKRP[_QJS [̂LJKP̂cHIJKHLJKMdbPQKRSTPKdVSSdWRLXJYLdZKRT[_XLScefghg4iijHKLkliDiimCiiCniho ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C;6>=9@/6=CD@@C39.-CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOPQKRSTPKUNVSSNWRLXNZKRT[\XLLT[]̂̂WWW_̀PIIMRabY[LKRP[_QJS [̂LJKP̂cHIJKHLJKMdbPQKRSTPKdVSSdWRLXdZKRT[_XLScefghg4iijHKLkliDiimCiiCnipo



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& +���,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62>=9@/6=ABC30AD@@4-.@EFGHIJKLHMNOPQRMSJJTUVVKQWXXPPPYZL[[\I]̂_QVHILQỲaJXQVaHLX̀HIJKLHbcOPQbSJJYUVJdefghi4jjkOHVlmjDjjgAjjAnjgo ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62;6>C//6=A-6C;AD@@4-.@EFpL̀OKKLHMqLÔRMSJJTUVVKQWXXPPPYZL[[\I]̂_QVHILQỲaJXQVaHLX̂L̀OKKLHbULÔbSJJYUVJdefghi4jjkOHVlmjDjjgAjjArjgo



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& &���,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62-A:;B>=9@/6=BCC@@4-.@DEFGHIJKLMNOPLQJRRNNSTUUOVWXXYYYZ[P\\]MHÎVULMPVZ_̀NXVÙLPXTGHIa_LMNOPLaRRNNZTUNbcdCef4gghGLUijCCggCBggBkgCl ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62DA7?=A.?=8B>=9@/6=BCC@@B39.-?<.Bm=9/04-.@DEnG\̀LGÙL]JKLMNOPLQJRRNNJYMUT̀ ÛJoLMOVSTUUOVWXXYYYZ[P\\]MHÎVULMPVZ_̀NXVÙLPXbG\̀LGÙL]a_LMNOPLaRRNNaYMUT̀ ÛaoLMOVZTUNbcdpqp4gghGLUijCCggCBggBkgql



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& )���,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C>=9@/6=CDD@@C39.-CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOKPQRSKTNUUQQNVPLWNXKPRYZWLLRY[\\VVV]̂SIIMP_̀aYLKPSY]bJQ\YLJKS\cHIJKHLJKMdbKPQRSKdUUQQdVPLWdXKPRY]WLQcefghg4iijHKLklDDiiDCiiCmino ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62;6>=9@/6=CDD@@4-.@AFpSbKPQRSKTNUUQQZWLLRY[\\VVV]̂SIIMP_̀aYLKPSY]bJQ\YLJKS\̀SbKPQRSKdUUQQ]WLQcefDqr4iijHKLklDDiiDCiiCsiDo



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& ����,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C;6>=9@/6=CDD@@C39.-?<.CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOPQKRSTPKUNVVSSNWRLXJYLNZKRT[\XLLT[]̂̂WWW_̀PIIMRabY[LKRP[_QJS [̂LJKP̂cHIJKHLJKMdbPQKRSTPKdVVSSdWRLXJYLdZKRT[_XLScefghg4iijHKLklDDiiDCiiCmihn ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=8C;6>=9@/6=CDD@@C39.-CE=9/04-.@AFGHIJKHLJKMNOPQKRSTPKUNVVSSNWRLXNZKRT[\XLLT[]̂̂WWW_̀PIIMRabY[LKRP[_QJS [̂LJKP̂cHIJKHLJKMdbPQKRSTPKdVVSSdWRLXdZKRT[_XLScefghg4iijHKLklDDiiDCiiCmion



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& '���,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62>=9@/6=ABC30ADD@@4-.@EFGHIJKLHMNOPQRMSSJJTUVVKQWXXPPPYZL[[\I]̂_QVHILQỲaJXQVaHLX̀HIJKLHbcOPQbSSJJYUVJdefDgh4iijOHVklDDiiDAiiAmiDn ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62;6>C//6=A-6C;ADD@@4-.@EFoL̀OKKLHMpLÔRMSSJJTUVVKQWXXPPPYZL[[\I]̂_QVHILQỲaJXQVaHLX̂L̀OKKLHbULÔbSSJJYUVJdefDgh4iijOHVklDDiiDAiiAqiDn



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& �����,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62-A:;B>=9@/6=BCD@@4-.@EFGHIJKLMNOPQMRKSTOOUVWWPXYZZ[[[\]Q̂ _̂NIJ̀XWMNQX\abOZXWbMQZVHIJcaMNOPQMcSTOO\VWOdefCgh4iijHMWklCDiiCBiiBmiCn ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62EA7?=A.?=8B>=9@/6=BCD@@B39.-?<.Bo=9/04-.@EFpĤbMHWbM_KLMNOPQMRKSTOOK[NWVb̀WKqMNPXUVWWPXYZZ[[[\]Q̂ _̂NIJ̀XWMNQX\abOZXWbMQZdĤbMHWbM_caMNOPQMcSTOOc[NWVb̀WcqMNPX\VWOdefrsr4iijHMWklCDiiCBiiBmisn



��������� ����	
���������������������������
�����������
��������� !�"�#$%&�
'����(��'��$)*+�& �����,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62AB7?=B.?=C>=9@/6=CDE@@C39.-CF=9/04-.@AGHIJKLIMKLNOPLQRSTLUOVWRROXQMYOZLQS[\YMMS[]̂̂XXX_̀TJJNQabc[MLQT[_dKR [̂MKLT̂eIJKLIMKLfdLQRSTLfVWRRfXQMYfZLQS[_YMReghiji4kklILMmnDEkkDCkkCokpq ,-../01223334567789:;<0.=9604>?@20.?=62;6>=9@/6=CDE@@4-.@AGrTdLQRSTLUOVWRR\YMMS[]̂̂XXX_̀TJJNQabc[MLQT[_dKR [̂MKLT̂bTdLQRSTLfVWRR_YMReghDst4kklILMmnDEkkDCkkCukDqv6778nw:;<0.=960nw:>jkxpnv9A7<=:nqy6:<6zz{zz|?>5}?=;nw~ntDDkDn/1n,�DpGnstECDjtto?:.B>.n�0n,2>?:.B>.G�9.6n�81n��|�9n,-../1223334/<=694>?@G



��������� ���	
���	�	
����	�	�������	�	����	����������������� ������������!��"��������������������������� ��#�����"�	$��������	%��&'	()#���))����� 	
����*�"	%�'	�	�������	%��������'	�	���	
���	�	
����+,-./0123.4./5672386-23.9:.+;0<-2;3/-;,6.=><-.+;0<-2;3?��	���"���	��	����@������	@��	������A	��@�"	������	���	����	������	����A	���"�	���	�����	��"��	��	���"���	��"��!	��""����	���	@��	���"������ �A��A!	$B������	@��	�����	��"��	��	����	�#""C	�&""C	��""C	���	��""!	D	���""��	�����A	��"���	@��	�����A	�����	��	���������A	����	���"��!E���	�������	��"�����	��"�����	F���	���B��	��"���	�@	��	������	���	��"��	���	��	���������AC	�����	��	���������A	��"!		�$GG	HI�	J����KL	$KM	$N$�G$O�G�?P	Q0,7.+,-.+;0<-2;3?��	B���	���	���"���	��	���A��	@��	��	F���	����C	���	������R	��	���	���"���"C	���C	���	���"���	���"�	����!	?��	���"�	����	���	����	����""����	���	@��	A��C	��S���C	���	��A����@��"���	��S���	����"���A�����	%A�C	��C	����'	������������!	I���	����	�@	��	������C	�"���	���	���A	B���"���������!	N���	���	���"���	��	�B������	��	����	���A��A	@��"	T!#""	��	#�""!		U70-VW::.+,-.+;0<-2;3H���	�@@	B���	���"���	��	���A��	����@������	@��	���"���A	@���	�@@	����	F����	�������	�@	��	���"���"	����	���	�	�������	�����	������	��	��	���	�@	��	���"���"	���"����	F����	��B��	��	��X�����	���	�@	��	B���!	?�	�������	������	���	�	���A�	���"��	����	��	���"���"	���	��	��	�������	��!	H���	�@@	���	���"���	��	�B������	������	���A��A	@��"	�#""	��	#�""!	%#�""	�	�#""	���	����	�B������C	����	�S���'U70-.82,;.W::.+,-.+;0<-2;3?���	A����	�@	���"���	��	���A��	����@������	@��	���"���A	@���	���	�@@	���	���"�	����C	F����	�������	�@	��	���"���"	����	���	�	�������	�����	������	��"����	����	��������	@���	�@@	���	����C	���	F���	�	���"�	���	���������A	@��"	��	���	�@	��	������!	?�	�������	������C	F���	���	���	���	�	���A�	���"��	����	�����"���"	���	��	��	�������	��!	?��	���	���"���	��	�B������	@��	����	���A��A	@��"	�#""	��	#�""!		�$GG	HI�	J����KL	$KM	$N$�G$O�G�?P		?�	@����F��A	����	��������	���	�	���	F���	H���	?��	I@@	�����	%��������FFF! ������������!��"�Y
�MZ�#�X@B)��(��"�S"�(��@T�&�)'N�F	����		%���� ���������' 	E�	$������	%������"����������' 	G�A	��	%������"������������A���'[



��������� ���	
���	�	
����	�	�������	�	����	����������������� ������������!��"��������������������������� ��#$%&'$()**'+,-,(,./,0�	����	1���	��	���	���	���"��	2���	���	�3	���	���4�	����1!5��"���"	���"�	
��� 6����733	
���	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		89.:9.;'<=,'$)((,/<'$(9>&,(?@,/%&&,('A9B,'-)('C)D('$%&E�	���"��	����	���4�	���F	"����	��	�����	���"��	�3	��	���	�3	��	���	��	������	��	��	���1��"�	���2!�"" ��"" �#""	G�2	����	H�������	3��	�""	����	I�����!��"�J���K���K���L#�M 	G�2	����	H�������	3��	��""	����	I�����!��"�J���K���K���L#�M 	G�2	����	H�������	3��	�#""	����	I�����!��"�J����"" #�"" #�""	G�2	����	H�������	3��	��""	����	I�����!��"�J���K���K���L�NM 	G�2	����	H�������	3��	#�""	����	I�����!��"�J���K���K���L�OM 	G�2	����	H�������	3��	#�""	����	I�����!��"�J��P%;,'Q)&9/*E���	�3	���"������	�����	�3���6�����1	R���	���	
��S,TTU'V.:D*<(9,*'V./��NW	�������	5X��		Y		��� 3���	�Z	O����	��	I��WM	[O#���OO�������	0�	I��������M



��������� ���	
�����������������������������	
����

������������	
���� ��� ���������������	
�	 ����	
�������
�� ��!��"#�$%&���%%��� � �'��� �(����!�#����������������!� �����������#������	
��)*+,-./0**1.234,5-67058.239:���������	
���;��� �����<���������	�� 
	���=��>� ������<������� �����<������
��>�������� ��
����?	�����
��@	������	 
�����=��>��>������	��A�
����A����=����
����� �����
������>;� ��������
���B���������;������>>�
������� �����=��>�������

>���B������C�"���
��&���������=���
�����<<�����������&�"����B���	
���������������D� ������ ����>��������<�����������	�� 
	����
�����
� 	
����E�������>>�����	������	 
��������<���;��������	�� 
	����	��<�?	�>�
����
����>;������������<�
� ���?	��
�����=������ ���
��
������������>����>�A��>������
�����<�
������	����>�
�;�����>��<�>������>>����
�
��
� ��
� 
�
��� �������>�����
���>��
��>�����>�
���/0**1.234,5-6705.239��C"���>�	����=��	���F��G� �������H�%��������!��"#�$%&���%%���
� 
���!� ��
� 
#'�
��I���J�GK��!�

����AAA��	���� ��# �!�

����AAA���������	
���� ���L'�DM�& N�=%��$�
��?��$�C�"�%#O��A����
��!� �� ��	
� ��
�# �P���  �	�
�!� 	
������  �	�
�# �H�<����!� 	
������  �	�
�>�<���#Q



��������� ����	
�	������
�
�����	�
�	��
�
�����
�	�������������������	�������� ��� ����	���	���!���	��	������ ����������
"�����	 �
#��$%
&'(���''���� � 
)��� �*���
#�%
�
�����	�
�	��
#� ����	���	��%
�
����	
�	������+,--./01,,2/324546547,8�����
�	�������9
�	 �
:��
����	:
;	����	��	�<
=�<� �
���
����� ��
����
��	
�>�� ��
����<��?���
�����
�!�
�����
�	�������9
�	 �
���<���	��
�
��<� �9
��
@�
@��<�
��!�	
�
�	����!��
������<�
�<��	����
� ������	�<�������<�
�
���<� �
�	�
������<�
��
��� ������
��
@���
�
��
���
	�
� ������	�<�9
@�������
������<�
�	
�����
�
�������
��� �������
@��
�	����	��	�<<�
����	�<�
��<���	��A��
��<<�@�	!
���
����
���������	�
��
@�
����
����
�	�
�<��
�	
����
 ����9
��
����<�
@�
����
� ������
�
���� �9
�	
�����	��	 ��
��
B$C
���
 ����	
���
���	�)@� ���
�
�����!�����<�
<����
��<<
�� ��	!
���	���"<<
 ��������
��>��
@�
���
���
����
����
���C
�� � <��
������<"<<
�� ��!�	!
������<�
@�
�� ����
���9
�������9
��
�� � <���D��
��	��� ���	!
 �	��
�� � <��
���C
��
�<<
<������
���<
 ����
����
���
�� ��	�	!
��� �����
@��	
��	��� ���	!
���
 �������	�
��� ������
�����E�
�<��
 ��	!��
����
���	!
�
@���
�����
 ��<�	
�
 ��	!
��<
���
���
�	
���
�� ��	���
E�
���	�
��
��
@���
�����
 ��<�	����� ��
����
@���
��	
����<�
 ��	!
��<9
@�� �
 �	
��
����<�
��������
�	�
���<� ��
�	
��
�� ��	���
�	
��
��������
����
@���	
	���<�
�$�
!�<<�	�
��
 ��<�	
��
���
�
��
��� �����
�	�
 <��	��
��
�	
������
�� �<���
)�	 �
��
 ��	!�
@�
����
	�!�	�����
�	�
��<
@�����	
��
 ���	!
�����
�����
�	�������9
@�<<
 �	�	��
�
����
�@���
�
!���	��
����	���
�	�
��	��� ���	!
��� ������9
�	 <���	!����	!
�@��
����
���
 ����	
�����
�����
�	�
���!�����	!
�
�
�����
<���
��
	���
������<���
������E�
@�<<
��
<��	 ��	!
������<	�@
 �����	!
�	�
��� �����	!
����� �
�	 <���	!
�
	�@
��	�
��<�
��	��<
����<
��
@�<<
��
������<
����
�	��9
�	�
�  ��������
��� ����	
�	��
@�
�����
A��
 ��	!��
@�
���
���<���	�	!
���
����
	�@
����<�9
	�
�	<�
���� �
��
 ����	
������	9
���	!
�����	����	��	�<<�
����	�<�F
��
�
��
����
���
�������	!
�	
��������
����� �
#������@@@�������	�������� ���G)�HI	( J��'��&��	K��&���B�$�'%L��@
���

#� �� ���� ���% 
M�
"  ��	
#� ��������  ��	�% 
N�!
�	
#� ��������  ��	�<�!�	�%O



��������� ����	
���������
�
�������������������	��������������������� �����������
����������
 ��!"
#$����$$������ 
%�����&���
 �"
�
�������'()*+,*-./����	
���������0
����
��1!
��2����
�3����
4���5��0
�6
$����
7�����
��!�#$����$$
8�9�
��!�#$����#�

:;<=>?@AB=CAD E<ADFGHIJKLDCMMD?NOOCMAANOOCMAA?E=PM?QR=DS LD<DM?T?UCVW=PXM?T?YMZ=VP[\\]Î ĴK 
 ��������___�����	��������������̀%�ab���c53$��#���d��#��51�!�$"e��_
����

 ���������������" 
f	
�������
 ������������������" 
6�g
��
 ������������������2�g���"h



SPONSORED BY:  FRED WESCOTT 
        

   
RESOLUTION 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

      
 

2018CR_______ 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS AND 

 QUICKSTART 39, LLC.  
 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Industrial Jobs Recovery Law (“IJRL”) promotes the 

development and/or redevelopment of industrial properties by the use of incremental tax 
revenues derived from the tax levies of various taxing districts in redevelopment project areas for 
the payment of redevelopment project cost; and 

 
WHEREAS, the anticipated benefits to the taxing districts of an IJRL district are an 

eventual increase in the assessment base of the taxing districts, the removal of adverse economic 
conditions, the development of industrial parks, and the development, retention and expansion of 
employment opportunities for Illinois residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to lack of growth and redevelopment, the County of Winnebago, in 

conjunction with the Village of New Milford and the Village of Cherry Valley, formed an IJRL 
district in 2011 in the industrial area in and around the Baxter Road interchange on I-39 in 
Winnebago County; and 

 
WHEREAS, by Intergovernmental Agreement the Villages of New Milford and Cherry 

Valley granted the County of Winnebago sole authority to negotiate redevelopment agreements 
with prospective developers in the IJRL district and to set the amount of incentives, if any, given 
to such developments, up to fifty percent (50%) of increment from each parcel proposed for 
development; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2018, Winnebago County negotiated an agreement with Quickstart 39, 

LLC. (“Quickstart”) for an incentive of fifty percent (50%) of increment over twelve (12) years 
to locate a business to the IJRL District; and  

 
WHEREAS, the tax increment allocation financing offered by the County of Winnebago 

was a considerable factor in Quickstart and said business to relocate to the IJRL district; and 
 



       WHEREAS, the Economic Development Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed and recommend approval of the proposed Redevelopment 
Agreement between the County of Winnebago and Quickstart 39, LLC., attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to 
execute the Redevelopment Agreement between the County of Winnebago and Quickstart 39, 
LLC., in substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Administrator, the County Chief 
Financial Officer, and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 
 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Fred Wescott, Chairman    Fred Wescott, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
LC Wilson      LC Wilson 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia      Dave Fiduccia 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



1 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 This Redevelopment Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of this ____ day of 
_________, 2018, by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois, an Illinois body politic, 
having its principal offices located at 404 Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois (“County”) and 
Quickstart 39 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having its principal offices located at 
9500 Bryn Mawr Avenue, Suite 340, Rosemont, Illinois 60018 (“Developer”).  All capitalized 
terms are defined herein or otherwise have such definitions as set forth in the Industrial Jobs 
Recovery Law, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-1 et seq. as amended (the “Act”).   
  

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the County is a duly organized and existing body politic created under the 
laws of the State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the Illinois Counties 
Code, 55 ILCS 5/1- 1001, et seq., as amended. 

  WHEREAS, municipalities are authorized under the Act to undertake the 
redevelopment of “industrial park conservation areas” within or near the municipality, including 
the approval of redevelopment plans and projects, if the conditions specified in the Act are met, 
and they are further authorized to implement tax increment allocation financing pursuant to the 
Act, and to pay the costs of such redevelopment as are permitted under the Act; and 

 WHEREAS, Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the State of Illinois 
authorizes municipalities and other governmental entities to join together in intergovernmental 
agreements for the purpose of achieving statutory objectives and goals individually and jointly; 
and  

 WHEREAS, the Village of New Milford, an Illinois municipal corporation (“New 
Milford”) and the Village of Cherry Valley, an Illinois municipal corporation (“Cherry Valley”) 
(collectively referred to as “Municipalities”), in cooperation with the County, have determined 
that the area in and around the Baxter Road Interchange on I-39 in Winnebago County is 
appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area (“IJRL District”) as 
defined in the Act utilizing Tax Increment Financing to spur private investment and 
development; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Municipalities that such development is not 
likely to occur without incentives being made available; and 

 WHEREAS, it has been determined that the formation of the IJRL District will likely 
result in the creation of a large number of jobs which will benefit Cherry Valley, New Milford 
and Winnebago County as a whole; and 

 WHEREAS, the County, in cooperation with the Municipalities, has determined that it is 
in the best interests of the County as a whole, including the Municipalities, to redevelop certain 
real property within the County, (“Redevelopment Project Area”), pursuant to a Redevelopment 
Plan, as such term is defined in the Act; and 



2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Municipalities and the County have found that the Redevelopment 
Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without adoption of the 
Redevelopment Plan and that the County overall is a labor surplus municipal service area; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Municipalities, by Ordinance adopted by each 
Village Board, approved a Redevelopment Plan and Project, designated the Redevelopment 
Project Area specifically designated as the I-39/Baxter Road Redevelopment Project Area, and 
adopted tax increment allocation financing for the Redevelopment Project; and 

 WHEREAS, by Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the Municipalities and 
the County (“Intergovernmental Agreement”), attached hereto as Exhibit A, the County will 
administer the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“STAF”) created with tax increment allocation 
financing pursuant to the Act and the County is thereby charged with the responsibility of 
negotiating with developers who wish to obtain financial assistance in developing the 
Redevelopment Project Area; and 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is the fee simple title holder to a parcel of real estate located 
within the Redevelopment Project Area, and Developer proposes to redevelop said real estate by 
constructing thereon a one-story industrial/manufacturing facility of approximately 675,000 
rentable square feet with related improvements (the “Project”), all as generally depicted on 
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Said real estate is legally described on 
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Subject Property”); and  

 WHEREAS, Developer is to do the following in connection with the Project:  (i) 
undertake and pay for the costs of all plans and specifications, professional fees, water 
connection fees, and Baxter Road access fees, and apply for and receive all required plan review 
approvals and permits; and (ii) undertake and complete the Project in compliance with the 
approved plans and permits and all applicable federal, state, County, municipal, village, or 
administrative laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and orders relating in any way to the 
development of the Project (collectively, “Laws”); and  

 WHEREAS, upon substantial completion, the Project will represent an investment on the 
part of the Developer of not less than $25,000,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the County, after due and careful consideration, has concluded that 
redevelopment of the Property, as provided for in this Agreement, will further the growth of the 
County, facilitate the redevelopment of the entire Redevelopment Project Area, increase the 
assessed valuation of real estate situated within the Redevelopment Project Area, increase 
economic activity within the County as a whole, provide a substantial number of jobs to residents 
of the County, and otherwise be in the best interest of the County by furthering the health, safety, 
morals, and welfare of its residents and taxpayers; and 

 WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into this Agreement with the Developer and 
agrees, pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement, to use tax increment allocation financing 
to defray certain costs relating to the Project to the extent such costs qualify as Redevelopment 
Project Costs, as such term is defined in the Act. 



3 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 
contained in this Agreement and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged, the County and Developer agree as follows: 

SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference. The 
paragraph and section headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not 
intended to limit, vary, define or expand the content thereof.  
 

SECTION 2.  THE PROJECT 

2.1 The Project.  Developer shall begin development of the Project on or before August 1, 
2018, and will subsequently complete construction of the Project no later than June 30, 2019, in 
accordance with final plans and specifications of the Project as well as issued permits and all 
applicable Laws.  The Project will include a parking lot for cars and semi-trailer trucks, truck 
docks, and storm water detention for the benefit of said facility. The Project shall also include a 
north water line, a south water line, a sanitary sewer connection between the Well House and the 
existing sanitary sewer on Baxter Road (“Well House Sanitary Connection”), and a sanitary line 
on the south part of the Subject Property as more particularly described on Exhibit B hereto 
(hereinafter referred to as “Infrastructure Improvements”); provided, however, to the extent the 
Well House Sanitary Connection will cost more than $25,000, Developer will not be required to 
include it as part of the Project and it will remain the obligation of Rock 39, LLC under its 
Redevelopment Agreement with the County to be constructed as part of Rock 39, LLC’s next 
project in the Redevelopment Project Area.  Developer may connect all on-site water, sanitary, 
storm and sewer lines constructed on the Subject Property to utility lines existing on or near the 
perimeter of the Subject Property, provided Developer first complies with all applicable County 
requirements governing such connections, including the payment of customary fees and costs 
related thereto, including but not limited to the County’s water connection fee which shall be 
$81,280, calculated based on County Ordinance Section 68-15-D-1(b).  Developer shall also 
have access to the Subject Property from Baxter Road provided Developer first complies with 
the County’s entrance connection fee on Baxter Road, requiring the payment by Developer to the 
County of said Baxter Road access fee of $158,496 calculated based on County Ordinance 
Section 82-10.  Unless the County accepts a letter of credit from Developer as a surety for the 
completion of the Project in accordance with County ordinances, Developer shall substantially 
complete construction of the Project no later than June 30, 2019.  Developer will not be entitled 
to any payment of any portion of incremental taxes deposited in the STAF unless and until the 
Project has been substantially completed in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.   For 
purposes of this paragraph, substantial completion of the Project will be deemed to have 
occurred upon the issuance by the County of a temporary or final certificate of occupancy for the 
Project.  Subject to Developer’s right to be reimbursed for a portion of the cost of the 
Infrastructure Improvements and reimbursed for Redevelopment Project Costs as provided in 
this Agreement, development of the Subject Property shall be completed at the sole expense of 
the Developer and shall, unless otherwise agreed in advance by the parties in writing (which 
agreement will be in accordance with applicable Laws and will not be unreasonably withheld, 



4 
 

conditioned or delayed), conform in all material respects to the plans and specifications approved 
by the County as a condition to issuing the applicable permits issued by the County for the 
Project.   

2.2 Project construction documents.  Developer has delivered civil engineering plans, 
building elevations, storm water drainage calculations and a site plan for the Project to Cherry 
Valley for zoning and site plan approval.  Developer will obtain any applicable permits and 
approvals required for the Project from Cherry Valley, the County and other applicable 
governmental authorities, will submit to the County any plans and specifications required by 
applicable County building codes for the issuance of permits required by the County pursuant to 
applicable Laws and will cause the Project to be completed in accordance with final plans and 
specifications, issued permits and applicable Laws.   Developer shall be responsible for paying 
all required County building permit fees.    

   

   SECTION 3.  COVENANTS/REPRESENTATIONS/WARRANTIES OF DEVELOPER  

3.1 Covenants, Representations and Warranties of Developer.  To induce the County to 
execute this Agreement and perform the obligations of the County hereunder, the Developer 
hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the County as of the date of this Agreement and as 
of the date of each disbursement of County funds hereunder, that: 

 (a)  Developer is a Delaware limited liability company duly organized, validly 
existing, qualified to do business in Illinois, and licensed to do business in any other state where, 
due to the nature of its activities or properties, such qualification or license is required; 

 (b)   Developer has the right, power and authority to enter into, execute, deliver and 
perform this Agreement; 

 (c)   The execution, delivery and performance by Developer of this Agreement has 
been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action, and does not and will not violate its 
Articles of Organization or by-laws as amended and supplemented, any applicable provision of 
law, or constitute a breach of, default under or require any consent under an agreement, 
instrument or document to which Developer is now a party or by which Developer is now or may 
become bound;  

 (d)   Developer is now and for the Term of the Agreement shall remain solvent and 
able to pay its debts as they mature; 

 (e)   There are no actions or proceedings by or before any court, governmental 
commission, board, bureau or any other administrative agency pending, or to the best of 
Developer’s knowledge, threatened against Developer which would impair its ability to perform 
under this Agreement; and 

 (f)   Developer owns the Property, which is located in the Redevelopment Project 
Area, and is responsible for paying the real estate taxes for the Property. 



5 
 

3.2 Survival of Covenants, Representations and Warranties of Developer.  Developer 
agrees that all of its representations and warranties set forth in this Section and elsewhere in this 
Agreement are true as of the date of execution of this Agreement and shall survive for the term 
of this Agreement.          

SECTION 4.  DEVELOPER’S OBLIGATIONS 

4.1 Use of Subject Property.  The Developer shall own the Subject Property and undertake 
construction of this Project in accordance with this Agreement.  The Developer shall also utilize 
the Subject Property in a manner consistent with IJRL District uses identified in or allowed by 
the Act and the Redevelopment Plan and Project. 

4.2   Real Estate Taxes.  Developer shall pay all Real Estate Tax Bills when due and payable 
for the Subject Property. 

SECTION 5.  TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION FINANCING 

5.1 Tax Increment Allocation Financing of Redevelopment Project Costs.  Developer has 
represented to the County that tax increment allocation financing was a considerable factor in the 
decision to move forward with the Project.  The Parties agree that tax increment allocation 
financing, implemented in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Act, the 
Intergovernmental Agreement and this Agreement, will be a source of funding for the Project. 

5.2 Intergovernmental Agreement.  As a condition precedent to the County’s and 
Developer’s obligations contained in this Agreement, the County has entered into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement as allowed by Article VII, Section 10(a) of the Constitution of the 
State of Illinois, which allows the County to administer the STAF created by the tax increment 
allocation financing enacted by the Municipalities and that it shall thereby have the authority to 
use such funds to provide, on a case-by-case basis, incentives for the development of the Subject 
Property.   

5.3 Available Tax Increment.  Annually, the County shall determine the amount of real 
estate tax increment equal to the amount of the total collected tax increment attributable to the 
Developer property which is deposited in the STAF (“Developer Property Increment”), less a 
proportionate amount of the County’s annual expenses associated with the administration of the 
STAF (“Developer Allocated STAF Expenses”) which shall result in a sum referenced as the 
“Available Developer Tax Increment.”  The Developer Allocated STAF Expenses shall equal the 
total County annual expenses associated with the administration of the STAF for the 
Redevelopment Project Area multiplied by that percentage which equals the Developer’s 
Property Increment as it relates to the increment of the entire Redevelopment Project Area.   

5.4 Developer Payments.  Subject to Section 13.2 of this Agreement, the County agrees to 
reimburse the Developer fifty percent (50%) of the Available Developer Tax Increment for a 
period of twelve (12) years for the authorized reimbursable eligible Redevelopment Project Costs 
of the Project incurred by the Developer as set forth on Exhibit D, attached hereto (the “Eligible 
Redevelopment Project Cost Schedule”), and which are approved by the County pursuant to this 
Section 5.4 of this Agreement.  The other fifty percent (50%) of the Available Developer Tax 



6 
 

Increment shall go solely towards servicing the debt in a Special Service Area as detailed in the 
Redevelopment Agreement between the County and Rock 39, LLC., executed on September 7, 
2012.   In no event will Developer’s reimbursement for costs for the Infrastructure Improvements 
include costs otherwise reimbursed by the County under Section 5.5 below.  The County’s total 
reimbursement to the Developer from the Available Developer Tax Increment under this 
Agreement is currently estimated to be approximately $6,000,000.  Prior to being provided 
Available Developer Tax Increment, Developer shall submit to the County reasonable evidence 
that the Developer’s Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs, for which reimbursement is 
requested, have been incurred and paid for by the Developer.  Reasonable evidence shall include, 
but is not limited to, paid invoices, paid receipts and contracts.  All paid invoices and paid 
receipts shall contain the date of service, type of service, location of service, amount paid, 
name/address/telephone number of the service provider and other information as necessary to 
establish the identity of the provider, type of service and amount paid.  The County reserves the 
right to require additional documentation in its sole discretion but will not unreasonably 
withhold, condition or delay its approval under this Agreement.  Subject to Section 13.2 of this 
Agreement, and subject to the County’s receipt of said reasonable evidence of Developer’s 
eligible Redevelopment Project Costs, the Developer’s eligible Redevelopment Project Costs 
will be paid to Developer within ninety (90) days of receipt on the tax increment in the STAF, 
however only to the extent that such revenue is received by the County.     

THE COUNTY’S OBLIGATION TO PAY THE DEVELOPER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 
IS A LIMITED OBLIGATION PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE INCREMENTAL TAXES 
DEPOSITED IN THE STAF CREATED WITH RESPECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AS DEFINED IN SECTION 2.1 ABOVE, AND SHALL NOT BE A GENERAL 
OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY OR SECURED BY THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF 
THE COUNTY.  

5.5 Reimbursement from County for Portion of Costs of Infrastructure Improvements.  
In order to compensate Developer for a portion of the costs of the Infrastructure Improvements, 
the County shall pay Developer $285,000.  In connection with the payment of said $285,000 set 
forth in this Section 5.5, Developer shall provide such evidence as the County shall reasonably 
request to establish Developer has incurred the cost for the Infrastructure Improvements.  Such 
evidence shall include but not be limited to bills, paid receipts, contracts, invoices, lien waivers 
or other similar evidence.  All bills and receipts shall contain the date of service, type of service, 
amount paid, name/address/telephone number of the service provider and other information as 
necessary to establish the identity of the provider, type of service and amount invoiced/paid. 
Subject to Section 13.2 of this Agreement, and subject to the County’s receipt of said reasonable 
evidence of Developer’s Infrastructure Improvements costs, the Developer’s Infrastructure 
Improvements  shall be payable within thirty (30) days after written request therefor from 
Developer.  In no event will Developer be entitled to reimbursement from the Available 
Developer Tax Increment for the $285,000 of costs of Infrastructure Improvements paid by the 
County under this Section 5.5.  The County’s obligation to pay the amount described in this 
Section 5.5 is not subject to the limitations described in Section 5.4 above.  SECTION 6.  
TERM 



7 
 

 Unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 13 of this Agreement, the term of this 
Agreement shall commence on the date of execution and end upon the first to occur of (i) the 
date of the aggregate payments to the Developer pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Agreement 
equals the total Redevelopment Project Costs expended or (ii) the termination of the 
Redevelopment Project Area as required by law.     

 

SECTION 7.  NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY TO OTHERS FOR DEVELOPER’S 
EXPENSES 

 The County shall have no obligation to pay costs of the Project to any person other than 
the Developer, nor shall the County be obligated to pay any contractor, subcontractor, mechanic, 
or materialman providing services or materials to the Developer for the development of the 
Project; provided, however, that, subject to Sections 9 and 10 of this Agreement and upon 
Developer’s written request, the County will pay amounts owed to Developer under this 
Agreement to a tenant at the Project.   

SECTION 8.  NO DISCRIMINATION  

 The Developer for itself and its successors and assigns agrees that in the development of 
the Project, the Developer shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  The Developer shall take 
reasonable action to require that applicants are employed and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, creed, color, religion, sex or national origin.    

SECTION 9.  ASSIGNMENT  

 Developer may not sell, assign or otherwise transfer its interest in this Agreement in 
whole or in part without the written consent of the County; provided, however, that Developer 
may, in each instance without the written consent of the County, collaterally assign its interest in 
this Agreement to a mortgage lender holding a lien encumbering the Subject Property as partial 
security for the payment of its debt to that lender or assign its interest in this Agreement to a 
successor in title to the Subject Property.   Developer will provide written notice to the County of 
any assignment of this Agreement (other than a collateral assignment) within thirty (30) days 
after the effective date of that assignment.  Any assignee of Developer’s interest in this 
Agreement (other than a collateral assignee) will agree in writing to assume all remaining 
executory obligations of Developer under this Agreement.   

SECTION 10.  SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS  

 The terms, conditions and covenants set forth in his Agreement shall extend to, be 
binding upon, and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and permitted assigns of the 
County and the Developer and shall run with the land.  Any person or entity now or hereafter 
owning legal title to all or any portion of the Subject Property, including the Developer, shall be 
bound to this Agreement only during the period such person or entity is the legal titleholder of 
the Subject Property or a portion thereof, however, that all such legal title holders shall remain 



8 
 

liable after their ownership interest in the Subject Property ceases as to those liabilities and 
obligations which accrued during their period of ownership but remain unsatisfied or 
unperformed.  As used in this Agreement, the term “Developer” will mean the owner of fee 
simple title to the Subject Property from time to time during the term of this Agreement.  [ 

SECTION 11.  NO JOINT VENTURE, AGENCY OR PARTNERSHIP CREATED  

 Neither anything in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties to this Agreement shall be 
deemed or construed by the parties or any third person, to create or imply any relationship of a 
third party beneficiary, principal or agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture or to 
create or imply any association or relationship involving the County. 

SECTION 12.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

12.1 Defense of IJRL District.  In the event that any court or governmental agency having 
jurisdiction over enforcement of the Act and the subject matter contemplated by this Agreement 
shall determine that this Agreement or payments to be made hereunder are contrary to law, or in 
the event that the legitimacy of the IJRL DISTRICT is otherwise challenged before a court or 
governmental agency having jurisdiction thereof, the County and Developer shall reasonably 
cooperate with each other concerning an appropriate strategy acceptable to both parties to defend 
the validity of the IJRL District and this Agreement.  Furthermore, each party shall pay their 
respective legal fees, court costs and other expenses directly related to defense of the IJRL 
DISTRICT that each party shall incur as a result of defense of the IJRL DISTRICT.  In the event 
of an adverse lower court or agency ruling, payments of tax increment allocation financing shall 
be suspended during the pendency of any appeal thereof, but such payments shall be reinstated 
retroactively if such adverse ruling is reversed by the reviewing court or agency and to the extent 
that the STAF has received such increment.  

12.2 Use of Land.  Developer intends that the Subject Property shall be utilized solely in a 
manner consistent with industrial and manufacturing purposes as well as other Industrial Park 
uses identified in the Act. 

SECTION 13.  DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

13.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events, subject 
to the provisions of Section 13.2, shall constitute an “Event of Default” by Developer hereunder: 

 (a) the failure of the Developer to perform, keep or observe any of the Developer’s 
respective covenants, conditions, promises, agreements or obligations under this Agreement; 

 (b) if, at any time, any material term, warranty, representation or statement made or 
furnished by Developer (including the representations and warranties of Developer described in 
Section 2.1 hereof) is not true and correct in any material respect because of which Developer is 
unable to fulfill its obligations hereunder;  

 (c) the commencement of any proceedings in bankruptcy by or against the Developer 
or for the liquidation or reorganization of the Developer, or alleging that the Developer is 
insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they mature, or for the readjustment or arrangement of the 



9 
 

Developer’s debts, whether under the United States Bankruptcy Code or under any other state or 
federal law, now or hereafter existing for the relief of debtors; provided, however, that if such 
commencement of proceedings is involuntary, such action shall not constitute an Event of 
Default unless such proceedings are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after the 
commencement of such proceedings;  

 (d) the failure of the Developer to pay any real estate tax assessment when due; or 

 (e) the assignment or other transfer by the Developer of its right, title and interest in 
and to this Agreement without the prior written approval of the County in violation of the terms 
of this Agreement. 

13.2 Remedies.   

 (a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the County shall provide Developer 
with a written statement setting forth the Event of Default of Developer.  The County may not 
exercise any remedies against the Developer in connection with such Event of Default until thirty 
(30) days after giving such notice.  If such Event of Default cannot be cured within such thirty 
(30) day period, said thirty (30) day period shall be extended for such time as is reasonably 
necessary for the curing of the same, as long as the Developer is diligently proceeding to cure 
such Event of Default.  An Event of Default not cured as provided above shall constitute a 
breach of this Agreement.  Any failure or delay by the County in asserting any of its rights or 
remedies as to any Event of Default or alleged Event of Default or breach shall not operate as a 
waiver of any such Event of Default or breach of any rights or remedies it may have as a result of 
such Event of Default or breach. 

 (b) If the Developer shall fail to cure any Event of Default after the expiration of the 
cure period described in subparagraph (a), the County will be under no obligation to continue to 
pay any portion of Available Developer Tax Increment under this Agreement until such time as 
the Event of Default has been cured.   

 (c) The rights and remedies of the County are cumulative and the exercise by the 
County of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise by it, at the 
same time or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same Event of Default or for 
any other Event of Default by the Developer.   

 (d) If the County is in default of this Agreement, which is defined as the County’s 
lack of fulfillment of any obligation under this Agreement, the Developer shall provide the 
County with a written statement setting forth the default of the County.  The Developer may not 
exercise any remedies against the County in connection with such failure until thirty (30) days 
after giving such notice.  If such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period, said 
thirty (30) day period shall be extended for such time as is reasonably necessary for the curing of 
the same, as long as the County is diligently proceeding to cure such default.  A default not cured 
as provided above shall constitute a breach of this Agreement.  Any failure or delay by the 
Developer in asserting any of its rights or remedies as to any default or alleged default or breach 



10 
 

shall not operate as a waiver of any such default or breach of any rights or remedies it may have 
as a result of such default or breach.  

 (e) If the County shall fail to cure any breach by the County of this Agreement not 
cured within the cure period described in subparagraph (d), Developer shall have as its sole and 
exclusive remedy, the right of specific performance to compel the County to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

SECTION 14.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 Developer agrees to indemnify, pay, defend and hold the County and its elected and 
appointed officials, employees, agents and attorneys (individually an “Indemnitee,” and 
collective the “Indemnitees”) harmless from and against, any and all liabilities, obligations, 
losses, damages, penalties, actions, judgments, suits, claims, costs, expenses and disbursements 
of any kind or nature whatsoever (and including without limitation, the reasonable fees and 
disbursements of counsel for such Indemnitees in connection with any investigative, 
administrative or judicial proceeding commenced or threatened, whether or not such Indemnitees 
shall be designated a party thereto), that may be imposed on, suffered, incurred by or asserted 
against the Indemnitees in any manner relating or arising out of: 

 (i)  Developer’s failure to comply with any of the terms, covenants and conditions 
contained within this Agreement; or 

 (ii)  Developer’s or any contractor’s failure to pay general contractors, subcontractors or 
materialmen in connection with the STAF funded improvements or any other Project 
improvement; or 

 (iii)  the existence of any material misrepresentation by Developer in this Agreement; or 

 (iv) Developer’s failure to cure any material misrepresentation by Developer in this 
Agreement;  

provided, however, that Developer shall have no obligation to an Indemnitee arising from the 
gross negligence, wanton or willful misconduct of that Indemnitee.  To the extent that the 
preceding sentence may be unenforceable because it is violative of any law or public policy, 
Developer shall contribute the maximum portion that is permitted to pay and satisfy under the 
applicable law, to the payment and satisfaction of all indemnified liabilities incurred by the 
Indemnitees or any of them.  The provisions of the undertakings and indemnification set out in 
this Section 14 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.                

SECTION 15.  NOTICE 
 

 Unless otherwise specified, any notice, demand or request required hereunder shall be 
given in writing at the addresses set forth below, by any of the following means: (a) personal 
service; (b) overnight courier, or (c) registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. 

If to the County:       If to the Developer: 
 



11 
 

County of Winnebago      Quickstart 39, LLC. 
Attn:  Chairman Frank Haney     9500 Bryn Mawr Ave., Suite 340 
404 Elm Street      Rosemont, Illinois 60018 
Rockford, Illinois 61101     Attn: Mark Goode 
 
With Copies to:      With Copies to: 
 
Office of the Winnebago County State’s Attorney  O’Rourke, Hogan, Fowler & Dwyer  
Civil Bureau       10 South LaSalle Street, Suite 3700 
Courthouse Building      Chicago, Illinois 60603  
400 W. State Street, Suite 804    Attn:  Howard Goldblatt 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 
 
Such addresses may be changed by notice to the other parties given in the same manner provided 
above.  Any notice, demand, or request sent pursuant to this Section shall be effective upon 
receipt or refusal of delivery. 

SECTION 16. MISCELLANEOUS 

16.1 Amendment.  This Agreement, and the Exhibits attached hereto may not be amended or 
modified without the prior written consent of the parties hereto, or their successors in interest.     

16.2 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including each Exhibit attached hereto, which is 
hereby incorporated herein by reference) constitutes the entire Agreement between the parties 
hereto and it supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and discussions between the parties 
relative to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and inure 
to the benefit of and be enforceable by and against their respective successors, personal 
representatives, heirs, legatees, and assigns.      

16.3 Limitation of Liability. No member, official of employee of the County shall be 
personally liable to Developer or any successor in interest in the event of any default or breach 
by the County or for any amount which may become due to Developer from the County or any 
successor in interest or on any obligation under the terms of this Agreement.  

16.4 Waiver.   Waiver by the County or Developer with respect to any breach of this 
Agreement shall not be considered or treated as a waiver of the rights of the respective party with 
respect to any other default or with respect to any particular default, except to the extent 
specifically waived by the County or Developer in writing. No delay or omission on the part of a 
party in exercising any right shall operate as a waiver of such right or any other right unless 
pursuant to the specific terms hereof. A waiver by a party of a provision of this Agreement shall 
not prejudice or constitute a waiver of such party's right otherwise to demand strict compliance 
with that provision or any other provision of this Agreement. No prior waiver by a party, nor any 
course of dealing between the parties hereto, shall constitute a waiver of any such parties' rights 
or of any obligations of any other party hereto as to any future transactions. 

16.5 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 



12 
 

16.6 Severability.  If any provision in this Agreement, or any section, paragraph, sentence, 
clause, phrase, word or the application thereof, in any circumstance, is held invalid, this 
Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid part were never included herein and the 
remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 

16.7  Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the internal laws of the State of Illinois without regard to its conflicts of law principles.  

16.8 Venue and Consent to Jurisdiction.  If there is a lawsuit under this Agreement, each 
party agrees to submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit Court for the 17th Judicial Circuit, 
Winnebago County, Illinois.         

16.9 Force Majeure. Neither the County nor Developer nor any successor in interest to either 
of them shall be considered in breach of or in default of its obligations under this Agreement in 
the event of any delay caused by damage or destruction by fire or other casualty, strike, shortage 
of material, unusually adverse weather conditions such as, by way of illustration and not 
limitation, severe rain storms or below freezing temperatures of abnormal degree or for an 
abnormal duration, tornadoes or cyclones, and other events or conditions beyond the reasonable 
control of the party affected which in fact interferes with the ability of such party to discharge its 
obligations hereunder; provided, however that no such delay will affect any obligation under this 
Agreement for the payment of money.  The individual or entity relying on this section with 
respect to any such delay shall, upon the occurrence of the event causing such delay, give written 
notice to the other parties to this Agreement within a reasonable period of time thereafter. The 
individual or entity relying on this section with respect to any such delay may rely on this section 
only to the extent of the actual number of days of delay effected by any such events described 
above. 

16.10 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon Developer, the County and their 
respective successors and permitted assigns (as provided herein) and shall inure to the benefit of 
Developer, the County and their respective successors and permitted assigns (as provided 
herein). Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not run to the benefit of, or be 
enforceable by, any person or entity other than a party to this Agreement and its successors and 
permitted assigns. This Agreement should not be deemed to confer upon third parties any 
remedy, claim, right of reimbursement or other right. 

16.11 Drafter Bias.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the terms of this Agreement are 
the result of negotiations between the parties, both of whom are represented by independent 
counsel, and that this Agreement is the result of said negotiations.  As a result, in the event that a 
court is asked to interpret any portion of this Agreement, neither of the parties shall be deemed 
the drafter hereof and neither shall be given benefit of such presumption that may be set out by 
law. 

16.12 Attorneys’ Fees. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or breach of this Agreement which 
requires either party to undertake any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement, the Defaulting Party shall 



13 
 

pay upon demand all of the Non-Defaulting Party’s charges, costs and expenses, including the reasonable fees of 
attorneys, incurred in connection with such action.    

SECTION 17. JOB CREATION 

17.1 Definition of Full Time Equivalent Employee. “Full-Time Equivalent Employee” or 
“FTE” shall mean an employee of Developer, an assignee of Developer, a tenant or occupant of 
the Project or a third party service provider engaged by any one of them (or, with respect to job 
shares or similar work arrangements, two or more such employees counted collectively as a 
single FTE) who is employed in a permanent position at least 35 hours per week at the Project 
during the applicable month.. 

17.2  Jobs Covenant. The Developer, directly or through an assignee, a tenant or occupant of 
the Project, or a third party service provider engaged by any of them (each a “Project User”), 
shall adhere to the following job creation and retention standards throughout the term of this 
Agreement from and after substantial completion of the Project (collectively the “Jobs 
Covenant”): 

 (i) Jobs Certificate.  On the second anniversary date that a certificate of occupancy of 
construction for the Project has been issued by the County, a minimum total of sixty (60) FTEs 
shall be employed at the Project.  On said second anniversary date and on or before February 28, 
2022 (and on or before February 28 of each succeeding year during the term of this Agreement), 
Developer or another Project User, shall submit to the County a certified Jobs Certificate 
disclosing compliance with the Jobs Covenant for the previous calendar year.  “Jobs Certificate” 
shall mean a certificate substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E.  Developer agrees 
that it shall act in good faith and, among other things, shall not hire temporary workers or 
relocate workers for short periods of time for the primary purpose of avoiding a breach of the 
Jobs Covenant. The Jobs Certificate shall include all the information requested on Exhibit E.  
The Developer or another Project User shall allow the County to audit documents related to the 
number of FTEs created to determine job creation compliance with this Agreement.    

    

 

  (ii)       Covenants Run with the Land; Remedy. The covenants set forth in this Section 17 shall 
run with the land and be binding upon any successor in title to the Subject Property. The failure 
to satisfy the Jobs Covenant will not be an Event of Default under Section 13.1 or subject to the 
cure periods and remedies in Section 13.2; provided, however, that, in the event Developer does 
not satisfy the Jobs Covenant for any calendar year during the term of this Agreement, the 
portion of the Available Developer Tax Increment otherwise payable to Developer hereunder for 
that calendar year will be reduced by a fraction, the numerator of which is the difference between 
the number of FTE’s employed at the Project during that calendar year and 60 and the 
denominator of which is 60.    For example, if 54 FTE’s are employed at the Project in a 
particular calendar year, the Available Developer Tax Increment for that calendar year will be 
reduced by 10%. [60-54 = 6 and 6/60 = 1/10] 



14 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers on the above date.  

 

Quickstart 39, LLC, a Delaware limited liability County of Winnebago, an Illinois body  
company      politic and corporate 
 
By:_____________________________________ By:____________________________________ 
              Frank Haney 
Its:__________________________________  Chairman of the County Board of the  
        County of Winnebago, Illinois  
 

       ATTEST: 

 

       ______________________________   
       Tiana McCall, Clerk of the   
       County Board of the 
       County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 





























17 
 

EXHIBIT C  

 LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, 
RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY 
VALLEY, WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST 
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, A 
DISTANCE OF 1718.09 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ROCK 39, UNIT 
THREE, BEING A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 28, 
TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL, ACCORDING TO 
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED JUNE 02, 2014 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 
20141016899 AND CERTIFICATE OF CORRECTION RECORDED JUNE 09, 2014 AS 
DOCUMENT NUMBER 20141017655, IN THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY, 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS; THENCE THE FOLLOWING TWO COURSES 
ALONG SAID THE EAST LINE OF SAID SUBDIVISION; 1) NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 
MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 50.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SAID ROCK 39, UNIT THREE SUBDIVISION AND ALSO BEING 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 
MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, A DISTANCE 
OF 899.03 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE SOUTH 89 
DEGREES 40 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1, 
A DISTANCE OF 807.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; 
THENCE NORTH 64 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 51 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE 
SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF A 230.00 FEET WIDE RIGHT OF WAY TO 
COMMONWEALTH EDISON PER DOCUMENT NUMBER 1186817, A DISTANCE OF 
1736.68 FEET TO A LINE 980.64 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH 
LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE NORTH 89 
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
315.98 FEET TO THE LINE 9.00 FEET EAST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE 
OF A 33 FEET WIDE EXCLUSIVE PERPETUAL PIPELINE EASEMENT GRANTED TO 
NORTHERN ILLINOIS GAS COMPANY BY DOCUMENT NUMBER 1714587 RECORDED 
AUGUST 14, 1986 ON MICROFILM NO. 86-25-2288L THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 08 
MINUTES 20 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1626.01 FEET TO A 
LINE 50.00 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 
48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1080.75 FEET TO THE POINT 
OF BEGINNING, IN THE VILLAGE OF CHERRY VALLEY, WINNEBAGO COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 

 



18 
 

EXHIBIT D  

ELIGIBLE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COST SCHEDULE  

ELIGIBLE COSTS LIST: 

• Property assembly and acquisition 
• Studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications, cost of implementation and 

administration of the plan 
 Civil Engineering, Surveying & Layout 
 Testing 
 Architectural Design 
 Insurance 
 Developer Fee 
 General Conditions 
 General Contractor Overhead & Profit 
 Legal 
 Title Insurance 
 Other Professional Consultant Fees 

• Building demolitions and site grading/preparation 
 Demolition / Site Clearing 
 Site & Building Earthwork 

• Environmental Remediation 
• Construction or improvement of public improvements 

 Site Utilities 
• The cost of marketing sites within the redevelopment project area to prospective 

businesses, developers, and investors 
 Brokerage Commissions 

• Employment and Training 
• Relocation Costs 
• Developer Interest Costs 

 

Costs of infrastructure improvements which are the following:           
a north water line; a south water line; and a sanitary line 
on the south part of the Subject Property 
 

 

 

 



19 
 

EXHIBIT E  

JOBS CERTIFICATE 

 [to be retyped on letterhead of submitting party]  

___________ 20 __  

County of Winnebago, Illinois 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 
Attention:  County Administrator   
 

Re: Jobs Certificate, Quickstart 39, LLC Redevelopment Agreement 

Dear County Administrator: 

This Certificate is delivered pursuant to the Quickstart 39, LLC Redevelopment Agreement 
dated as of , 20_ (the "Agreement") and constitutes the Jobs Certificate for the period ended 
December 31, ___________[add month, day and year] (the "Period"). The undersigned certifies 
that _________________ FTEs have been employed at the Project during the Period. Capitalized 
terms used without definition in this Certificate have the meanings given them in the Agreement. 

    Sincerely yours, 

    ___________________________________________  

 

    By: __________________________________________ 

    Its: ____________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
APRIL 26, 2018 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by: Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION AFFIXING COMPENSATION AND OTHER  

BENEFITS FOR CERTAIN ELECTED COUNTY OFFICIALS 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to fix the 
salaries and other benefits to be paid to certain elected officials at least 180 days before the beginning 
of the tern of those elected offices whose compensation is to be fixed; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the term of office for the County Clerk, County Treasurer, and County Sheriff are 

scheduled to commence on December 1, 2018, and the County Board must fix the compensation for 
these officers on or before June 3, 2018; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Resolution No. 2013-CR114 on August 8, 2013 that 

stated all elected officials salaries shall be determined, voted on or before 90 days prior to the first 
official day of the candidate filing period. 

 
WHEREAS, no officer may have his or her salary or other benefits increased or decreased 

during the term for which he or she is elected (with the exception of the Clerk of the Circuit Court). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the following schedule of salaries be, and the same is, hereby adopted: 

 
 

COUNTY CLERK 
December 1, 2018- November 30, 2019 
December 1, 2019 -November 30, 2020     
December 1, 2020 - November 30, 2021 
December 1, 2021 -November 30, 2022 

 
 

$85,873  
$85,873 
$85,873 
$85,873



 
 

 COUNTY TREASURER 
                December I, 2018 - November 30, 2019 

December 1, 2019 -November 30, 2020 
December 1, 2020--November 30, 2021 
December 1, 2021 - November 30, 2022 

 
COUNTY SHERIFF 
December 1, 2018 -- November 30, 2019 
December l, 2019-November 30, 2020 
December 1, 2020 -November 30, 2021 
December 1, 2021 -November 30, 2022 

 
$85,873 
$85,873 
$85,873 
$85,873 
 

 
$119,040  
$119,040 
$119,040 
$119,040

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk, County Treasurer, and County Sheriff 
shall be eligible for any Health Plan and shall pay the same cost for individual, dependent and retiree 
health insurance coverage as County employees covered under AFSCME Local 473 Collective 
Bargaining Unit. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption, and the compensation shall take effect upon commencement of office of 
the County Clerk, County Treasurer, and County Sheriff, after the November 2018 general election. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Clerk, County Treasurer, and 
County Sheriff. 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Respectfully Submitted, 
 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois this 

_____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



 
  

 

Purchasing Department 
404 Elm Street • Room 202 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date:   April 19, 2018 
To:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
Prepared by:    Purchasing Department 
Subject:    Resolution Authorizing Joint Purchasing Seal Coating Services  
 

County Code:    Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 
 
Background: 
Locations managed by the County Facilities Department are in need of seal coating services.  
The Rockford Park District and the County of Winnebago joined together for Bid #18-2194 
Joint Purchasing Seal Coating Services as part of the Chairman’s Joint Purchasing Initiative 
with other local leaders.  Thereby allowing both entities to leverage the purchase of seal 
coating services to secure lower costs.   
 
Bid #18-2194 opening was on April 4, 2018 and there were a total of five initial Bidders with 
only three meeting the requirements of being a Responsible Bidder.  Patriot Pavement 
Maintenance was the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder.  The County Purchasing and 
Facilities’ Department staff reviewed the bid results and agreed the award should be with 
Patriot Pavement Maintenance.  
 
Recommendation:  
The County’s Facilities Engineer, Shawn Franks, recommends the contract for Bid #18-2194 be 
awarded to Patriot Pavement Maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 
  



County Board Meeting 
A p r i l  2 6, 2018 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Gary Jury 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 

 

2018 CR 
 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING JOINT PURCHASING  
SEAL COATING SERVICES 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, Section 2-355 of the Winnebago County Code sets forth the guidelines for 

the County’s participation in governmental joint purchasing agreements, and pursuant to the 
Illinois Governmental Joint Purchasing Act (30 ILCS 525/0.01 et seq.) the County has 
reviewed the Rockford Park District’s Invitation for Bid # 18-2194 for Joint Purchasing Seal 
Coating Services; and, 

 

WHEREAS, various Winnebago County locations need Seal Coating Services; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bids received for the aforementioned project 
and recommends awarding the contract as follows:  

  
PATRIOT PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE 
825 SEEGERS ROAD 
DES PLAINES, IL 60016                               (See Bid Tab for Pricing) 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee has determined that the 
funding for the aforementioned purchase shall be as follows: 

 

12000-01052  ADMINISTRATION BUILDING  
12000-01053    COURTHOUSE 
12000-01056    JUVENILE JUSTICE CENTER 
12000-01721    CRIMINAL JUSTICE CENTER 
74500                 RIVER BLUFF NURSING HOME 
77000                 ANIMAL SERVICE 
78000                 HEALTH DEPARTMENT-COURT 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute a contract 
award, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to PATRIOT PAVEMENT MAINTENANCE, 825 
SEEGERS ROAD, DES PLAINES, IL 60016. 

 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Facilities Engineer, Finance 
Director, Director of Purchasing and County Auditor. 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN  GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

ANGIE GORAL  ANGIE GORAL 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

ELI NICOLOSI  ELI NICOLOSI 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

The  above  and  foregoing  Resolution  was  adopted  by  the  County  Board  of  the  County  

of Winnebago, Illinois this day of  2018. 

         
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Dan Fellars, Board Member 
COUNTY BOARD MEETING 

April 26, 2018 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by: Dan Fellars 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON COUNTY 

GOVERNMENT EFFICIENCY 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois expenses continue to outpace revenue; and 
 

WHEREAS, ordinary and extraordinary solutions are required to reduce the cost of County 
Government operations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board believes ordinary and extraordinary solutions are required to 
reduce the cost of County Government operations and to balance the County Budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois hereby establishes a Special Committee of the Board to be known as the 
Committee on County Government Efficiency; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the herein established Committee on County 
Government Efficiency shall explore ordinary and extraordinary solutions on reducing the short-
term and long-term cost of County Government operations; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the herein established Committee on County 
Government Efficiency shall interview and partner with Municipal Governments, Community 
Groups, the Citizens of the County, and/or any other entity the Committee deems appropriate in 
pursuit of its mandate; 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the herein established Committee on County 
Government Efficiency shall meet no less than four times per calendar year, and provide updates 
to the County Board, and submit resolutions to the County Board in pursuit of its mandate. 

 
 
 
 
 



 Respectfully Submitted, 
 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 



Sponsored by: Board Members, Dan Fellars,  
L.C. Wilson, Dorothy Redd, Burt Gerl,  
Joe Hoffman, Angie Goral, Jaime Salgado,      
Dave Tassoni                   COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
                                                                                                                      April 26, 2018 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by: Dan Fellars 
 

2018 CR 
________________________________________________________ 
 

RESOLUTION DENOUNCING NEO-NAZI AND WHITE 
SUPREMACIST ACTIONS IN WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, Neo-Nazi and White Nationalist literature has recently been distributed 
among our immigrant and minority communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County is a multi-cultural and multi-ethnic community settled by 

immigrants; and 
 

WHEREAS, throughout the course of our nation's history, white nationalism has promoted 
intimidation and violent repression of individuals solely on the basis of their race, ethnicity, 
religion, or immigration status; and 

 
WHEREAS, while free speech and assembly are bedrock values for Americans, white 

nationalist and neo-Nazi groups promote agendas that are in irreconcilable conflict with our 
nation's foundational principles of liberty and justice for all; and 

 
WHEREAS, the white nationalist and neo-Nazi message of racial and social intolerance 

has led to senseless acts of violence and intimidation that continue to terrorize members of 
ethnic, racial, and religious minority communities; 

 
WHEREAS, Winnebago County welcomes all new residents regardless of ancestry, race 

or religion to participate in the growth and prosperity of the County; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the members of the board for Winnebago 
County, Illinois, that we strongly denounce and oppose the totalitarian impulses, violent 
terrorism, xenophobic biases, and bigoted ideologies that are promoted by white nationalists and 
neo-Nazis. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that our County, and its people will not tolerate 



discrimination or hate in any form or manifestation and that we stand united with resolve to 
promote and ensure equality for all residents of the Winnebago County. 

 
 

 Respectfully Submitted, 
 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia, Chairman  County Board Meeting 
  April 26, 2018 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 
TRAFFIC AND PARKING ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT  

WITH CHERRY VALE MALL, LLC. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Cherry Vale Mall, LLC, wishes to enter into an agreement with the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, to allow the Winnebago County Sheriff to regulate the 
parking of motor vehicles and vehicular traffic in the parking lots at Cherry Vale Mall; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, such an agreement is permissible, upon approval of the County 
Board, pursuant to 625 ILCS 5/11-209 and 5/11-209.1. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois that the Chairman of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago is authorized and directed to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement 
between the County of Winnebago and Cherry Vale Mall, LLC, for traffic and parking 
enforcement on the premises of Cherry Vale Mall, a copy of which is attached to this 
Resolution as Exhibit A. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Sheriff of 
Winnebago County and to Attorney Bradley L. Hendrix, CBL Properties, 2030 Hamilton 
Place Blvd., Chattanooga, TN 37421. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
      PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



TRAFFIC AND PARKING ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

 This Traffic and Parking Enforcement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of the ___ day of April, 2018 (“Effective Date”) between and among 
the THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, (“County”), and CHERRYVALE 
MALL, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Owner”). 
 

A.   RECITALS. 
 
1. Owner is the “owner,” as that term is defined in Section 11-209 of the 

Illinois Vehicle Code, 625 ILCS 5/11-209, of those certain tracts of land located at 
____________________, Cherry Valley, Illinois, and identified and depicted in 
Exhibit A attached to this Agreement (“Property”). 

 
2. The Property is currently improved with a shopping center building and 

numerous outlot retail buildings, collectively and commonly known as the Cherry 
Vale Mall, and with vehicular parking lots that serve the Cherry Vale Mall 
(collectively, the “Parking Lots”). 

 
3. Owner desires to enter into an agreement with the County in order to 

empower the County to regulate the parking of motor vehicles and vehicular traffic 
within the Parking Lots, pursuant to the provisions of Section 11-209 and 11-209.1 
of the Illinois Vehicle Code, 625 ILCS 5/11-209 and 5/11-209.1. 

 
4. The County and Owner desire to enter into this Agreement regarding 

the enforcement of traffic and parking regulations by the County within the Parking 
Lots.  

 
B.   REGULATION OF TRAFFIC AND PARKING. 
 
Enforcement by County.  Owner hereby authorizes the County, and the 
County hereby agrees, to enforce within the Parking Lots: (1) all generally-
applicable traffic and parking regulations set forth in the county of 
Winnebago Code of Ordinances, as may be amended from time to time; and 
(2) the Illinois Vehicle Code, 625 ILCS 5/1-100 et al., as may be amended 
from time to time.   



1. License Granted. Owner hereby grants a non-exclusive License to the 
County, and to its authorized officials, officers, employees, agents, and 
representatives, to enter the Property for the purpose of performing the traffic and 
parking enforcement authorized pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
2. Limitation of Service. Owner acknowledges and agrees that the 

County, in the exercise of its sole discretion, may determine when it shall provide 
traffic and parking enforcement pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
C.   COSTS. 
 
Owner acknowledges and agrees that it is solely responsible, and that the 

County will have no obligation, for payment of the costs of installation and 
maintenance of all traffic control or parking signs or devices located on the Property 
and used in connection with the traffic and parking enforcement contemplated by 
this Agreement nor for any costs of towing vehicles in conjunction with this 
Agreement.   

 
The County, through its Sheriff, or his legally designated representative, and 

the General Manager of Cherryvale Mall or its designated representative, shall 
jointly inspect said property for the purpose of determining what (if any) traffic 
signs, signals and/or markings are necessary for the safe and effective movement of 
traffic in and upon said property.  Following such inspection, the Owner, at its sole 
discretion and its sole expense may cause such signage to be installed on its property. 

 
D.   MAINTENANCE. 
 
[Intentionally Omitted] 
 
E.   TERM. 
 
This Agreement is for a 2-year term, beginning on the Effective Date.  Either 

Party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, by delivering 
written notice to the other Party not less than 30 days prior to the date of termination.  

 
F.   RELEASE; INDEMNIFICATION. 
 



1. Release. Owner hereby releases the County and its officials, 
officers, employees, agents, attorneys, and representative in connection with any and 
all actions or claims for any loss or damage to the Parking Lots or the Property, or 
any other property of the Owner, as a consequence of the performance of this 
Agreement.  

 
G.  ENFORCEMENT. 
 
1. General. Owner  agrees that it will not seek, and does not have the 

right to seek, to recover a judgment for monetary damages against the other or any 
elected or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, engineers 
or attorneys of the County, on account of the negotiation, execution or breach of any 
of the terms and conditions of this Agreement The sole and exclusive remedy 
available to each party, upon any breach of this Agreement by the other, is the 
termination of this Agreement under its terms. This provision does not apply to 
claims involving property damage or reimbursement pursuant to Section C. above. 
Likewise, for claims that Owner may have or may result in the future outside of the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties agree that this Section G(1) shall 
be inapplicable to such claims. 

 
 
H.   OWNER WARRANTIES. 
 
Owner hereby represents and warrants to the County, to the best of its 

knowledge and information as of the date of this Agreement, as follows: 
 
1. Owner has the authority and the legal right to make, deliver, and 

performs this Agreement, and has taken or will take all necessary actions and obtain 
all required consents and approvals to authorize the execution, delivery, and 
performance of this Agreement. 

 
2. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of 

Owner and is enforceable against Owner in accordance with its terms. 
 
3. To the best of the knowledge of the legal representatives of Owner, the 

execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement is not prohibited by or in 
conflict with ay requirement of law or under any contractual obligation of Owner, 



will not result in a breach or default under any agreement to which Owner is a party 
or is bound, and will not violate any restriction, court order, or agreement to which 
Owner is subject. 

 
4. The parties executing this Agreement on behalf of Owner and executing 

and delivering any other agreement or other item is contemplated by this Agreement 
or otherwise required to fulfill Owner’s obligations under this Agreement, have full 
authority to bind Owner to those obligations and to act on behalf of Owner. 

 
I.   GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
1. Notices. All notices and payments required or permitted to be given 

under this Agreement shall be given by the Parties by (i) personal delivery, (ii) 
deposit in the United States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelope with first class 
postage thereon, or (iii) deposit with the nationally recognized overnight delivery 
service, addressed as stated in this Section I.1.  The address of either Party may be 
changed by written notice to the other Party.  Any mailed notice shall be deemed to 
have been given and received within three days after the same has been mailed and 
any notice given by overnight courier shall be deemed to have been given and 
received within 24 hours after deposit. 

 
Notices and communications to the Parties shall be addressed to, and delivered at, 
the following address: 

 
  If to the County:  Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
      650 West State Street 
      Rockford, IL 61101 
      Attention: Sheriff 
 
  With a copy to:  Winnebago County State’s Attorney 
      400 W. State Street, Ste. 804 
      Rockford, IL  61101 
      Attention:  Civil Bureau 
 
  If to Owner:   Cherryvale Mall, LLC 
      Attention: Senior General Manager 
 



With a copy to:  CBL & Associates Management, Inc. 
      Attn: Chief Legal Officer 
      CBL Center 

Suite 500 
2030 Hamilton Place Boulevard 
Chattanooga, TN 37421 

 
2. Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in the 

performance of all terms, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
3. Consents. Whenever the consent or approval of either party is 

required in this Agreement, such consent or approval shall be in writing and shall 
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, and, in all matters contained herein, both 
parties shall have an implied obligation of reasonableness, except as may be 
expressly set forth otherwise. 

 
4. Exhibits. Exhibit A attached to this Agreement is, by this reference, 

incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between 
an exhibit and the text of this Agreement, the text of this Agreement shall control.  

 
5. Amendments and Modifications. No amendment or modification 

to this Agreement shall be effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and 
approved and executed by the parties to this Agreement in accordance with all 
applicable statutory procedures.  

 
6. No Joint Venture. It is hereby understood and agreed that nothing 

contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or constructed as creating the 
relationship of principal and agent, partnership or joint venture between the parties 
to this Agreement, it being agreed that no provision of this Agreement and no acts 
of the parties to this Agreement shall be deemed to create any relationship between 
the parties other than the relationship set forth specifically by the terms of this 
Agreement.  

 
7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire 

agreement between the parties to this Agreement, and supersedes all prior 
agreements and negotiations between the parties, whether written or oral, relation to 
the specific subject matter of this Agreement.  



 
8. No Third Party Beneficiaries. No claim as a third party beneficiary 

under this Agreement by any person, firm, or corporation shall be made, or be valid, 
against the County or Owner. 

 
9. Recording. The Parties acknowledge and agree that a copy of this 

Agreement will be recorded in the Office of the Winnebago County Recorder. 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives as of the date first above 
written. 
 
 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, an Illinois body politic  
 

_____________________________ 
Frank Haney 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 
Tiana McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
CHERRYVALE MALL, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. 

 
By: ___________________________ 
 
Title:___________________________  



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia                                 County Board Meeting: April 26, 2018 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 

 
2018 CR 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING POSITION REQUISITION  
FOR SHERIFF’S DEPUTY POSITION FOR WINNEBAGO  

COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to policy of the County of Winnebago, all departments 
seeking to fill vacant positions in their departments must submit to the County 
Administrator a Position Requisition prior to submission to the County Board to fill the 
vacant position; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 3, 2018, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department 
submitted a Position Requisition Form requesting the filling of a vacancy for a Crime 
Scene Technician; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there are not sufficient funds in the budget of the Winnebago 
County Sheriff’s Department 2018 FY budget to fund this position. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois that he County Administrator is authorized to approve the Position 
Request submitted by the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department for the filling of a 
vacancy for a Crime Scene Technician.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago 
County Sheriff and to the Winnebago County Finance Director. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
      PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 

Date: April 20, 2018 
Item: Resolution to Approve Agreement for Phase 1 Lean Implementation Consulting Services in Sheriff’s 
Department 
Prepared by: Julia Halsted, Deputy County Administrator 
 

Governing Statute: 55 ILCS 5/5-1016 states, “A county board may manage the county funds and 
county business.” 
 
County Ordinance: 2018 CO 007 states, “Host Fee funds are to be awarded for economic development 
initiatives, programs, and projects.” 
 
Associated Committee(s): Public Safety and Economic Development Committees 
 
Committee Recommendation: Public Safety Committee review on April 18 and April 26, 2018; Economic 
Development Committee review for Host Fee funding on April 18 and 25, 2018 
 
Background: Lean methodologies maximize value while minimizing required resources. With dwindling 
budgets and increasing costs, the County Board Office and Sheriff’s Department sought out a highly 
qualified professional service provider to facilitate the implementation of Lean into the Sheriff’s 
Department operations. The mutually recommended vendor offers more than 20 years experience and 
outcomes as a result of applying this collaborative process improvement approach to a wide range of 
industries.  
 
Recommendation: It is recommended that the Public Safety Committee support this resolution for 
consideration by the Board on April 26, 2018. 
 
 



County Board Meeting 
April 26, 2018 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the   
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia 
Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 

 
2018 CR __ 

 
 

RESOLUTION to APPROVE AGREEMENT for  
PHASE 1 LEAN IMPLEMENTATION CONSULTING SERVICES  

in SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT 
 

 
WHEREAS, County of Winnebago, Illinois, seeks innovative solutions to ensure 

the resources necessary to sustain quality services throughout the County; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Department represents a substantial investment in the 
County’s continuum of public safety services; and 
 
       WHEREAS, County expenses continue to exceed revenue and reserves spending 
is no longer viable; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Department is prepared to apply a cross-functional, 
collaborative, process improvement methodologies to identify savings through the 
elimination of waste while improving service.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Board Chairman enter into an agreement (Exhibit 
A) with consultant Dom Sawchuk for Phase 1 Lean Implementation Services for the 
Sheriff’s Department as described therein.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
directed to prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman and the Winnebago County Auditor. 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the  
 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 



  
 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT dated this ____ day of April, 2018, by and between the County of Winnebago, 
an Illinois body politic (“County”) and Dom Sawchuk (“Consultant”). 

Definitions 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions will apply. 
1. “Lean” is defined as the elimination of the wastes including correction, overproduction, motion, 

movement, waiting, inventory, processing, and underutilization, using process improvement 
methodologies based on respect for people and continuous improvement.  

Services to be Provided  

1. The County hereby agrees to engage Consultant and Consultant agrees to provide the following 
consulting services:  
Phase One Lean Implementation within the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department, the 
description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, will specifically include:   (1) Corrections - 
especially the transportation of prisoners, (2) Courthouse Security, and (3) Civil Process.  The 
review process will provide suggested improvements in each of the three areas.  Phase One shall 
include the development of an implementation plan for recommended Lean improvements, the 
anticipated scope, schedule, and required resources for the plan.   
 
Phase One includes 24 days of service over a 6-8 week period. Days of service will be agreed upon 
between the County and Consultant. If Phase One is completed in less than 24 service days, the 
remainder of the fee will either be applied at the rate of $800 per day to Phase Two 
(implementation of Phase One recommended improvements) or to expand Phase One as may be 
mutually agreed by the Parties. Expansion of Phase One would include continued focus in the areas 
of Corrections, Courthouse Security, and Civil Process. Should the County wish to obtain a Lean 
implementation recommendation for new areas of focus within the Sheriff’s Department 
operations, unused service days may be applied toward areas identified in an amended agreement.   

Should the County discontinue services, unused service days will be deducted from the final 
invoice at the rate of $800 per day.  

 



  
 

2. The Services will also include any other consulting tasks on which the Parties may agree. The 
Consultant hereby agrees to provide such Services to the County at no additional cost, unless first 
agreed to in an approved written Agreement approved by the Winnebago County Board. 

Term of Agreement 

3. The term of this Agreement (the "Term") will begin on the date of this Agreement and shall 
continue until the completion of the Services described herein, unless earlier terminated as set forth 
below. The Term may be extended with the written consent of the Parties, however, no additional 
compensation shall be paid unless approved in writing by the Winnebago County Board. 

4. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon 10 days written notice to the other Party.  Should 
the Agreement be terminated prior to completion, the County shall be required to pay Consultant 
only the per diem prorated amount for the portion of the Services delivered based on service days 
provided as of the termination date. Therefore, the Consultant is expected to record service days on 
an ongoing basis, and submit service dates on the final invoice.  

Compensation 

5. The Consultant will charge the County $19,200.00 (the "Compensation") for the Services 
described herein.  Consultant shall be paid 50% of the fee upon the execution of this Agreement 
and the balance upon completion of Phase One services. Invoices submitted by the Consultant to 
the County shall be paid according to the Illinois Prompt Payment Act.  

Confidentiality 

6. The Consultant shall not disclose, divulge, reveal, report or use, for any purpose, any Confidential 
Information which the Consultant has obtained, except as authorized by the County or as required 
by law. The obligations of confidentiality will apply during the term of this Agreement and will 
survive indefinitely upon termination of this Agreement. 

7. All written and oral information and material disclosed or provided by the County to the 
Consultant under this Agreement is Confidential Information regardless of whether it was provided 
before or after the date of this Agreement or how it was provided to the Consultant. 

8. The Consultant may not use the Confidential Information for any purpose other than that 
contracted for in this Agreement except with the written consent of the County. The Consultant 



  
 

will be responsible for any and all damages resulting from the unauthorized use of the Confidential 
Information.   

Return of Property 

9. Upon the expiry or termination of this Agreement, the Consultant will return to the County any 
property, documentation, records, or Confidential Information which is the property of the County. 

Independent Contractor 

10. In providing the Services under this Agreement it is expressly agreed that the Consultant is acting 
as an independent contractor and not as an employee. The Consultant and the County acknowledge 
that this Agreement does not create an employment relationship between the parties. Consultant 
shall be, for all purposes, an independent contractor to the County. Consultant shall be responsible 
for complying with payment and reporting requirements for all local, state, and federal taxes for 
compensation received under this Agreement. 

Notice 

11. All notices, shall be delivered to the Parties at the following addresses:  

a. Winnebago County - Office of the Chairman 
404 Elm St., Ste 533, Rockford, IL 61101 

b. Dom Sawchuk 
11333 Jeff Drive, Machesney Park, IL 61115 

or to such other address as either Party may from time to time notify the other, via first class mail 
postage paid. 

Indemnification 

12. Each Party agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other Party, and its respective affiliates, 
officers, agents, employees, and permitted successors and assigns against any and all claims, 
losses, damages, liabilities, penalties, punitive damages, expenses, reasonable attorneys fees and 
costs of any kind or amount whatsoever, which result from or arise out of any act or omission of 
the indemnifying party, its respective affiliates, officers, agents, employees, and permitted 



  
 

successors and assigns that occurs in connection with this Agreement. This indemnification will 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

Modification of Agreement 

13. Any amendment or modification of this Agreement or additional obligation assumed by either 
Party in connection with this Agreement will only be binding if evidenced in writing signed by 
each Party or an authorized representative of each Party. 

Assignment 

14. The Consultant will not voluntarily, or by operation of law, assign or otherwise transfer its 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the County. 

Enurement 

15. This Agreement will enure to the benefit of and be binding on the Parties and their respective heirs, 
executors, administrators and permitted successors and assigns. 

Titles/Headings 

16. Headings are inserted for the convenience of the Parties only and are not to be considered when 
interpreting this Agreement. 

Governing Law 

17. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois. 

Severability 

18. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable in 
whole or in part, all other provisions will nevertheless continue to be valid and enforceable with 
the invalid or unenforceable parts severed from the remainder of this Agreement. 

  



  
 

Waiver 

19. The waiver by either Party of a breach, default, delay or omission of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement by the other Party will not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the 
same or other provisions. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have duly affixed their signatures under hand and seal on this 
________________ day of April, 2018. 
 
  
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

_______________________________ 
Dom Sawchuk 

 
 



WINNEBAGO	COUNTY	ADMINSTRATION	
A	LEAN	APPROACH	TO	WINNEBAGO	COUNTY	SHERIFF’S	OFFICE		

Dom	Sawchuk	
April	02,	2018	



Current	Situa:on	
•  County	expenses	exceed	revenue	
•  Reserve	spending	no	longer	a	viable	op:on	to	cover	the	gap	
•  Revenues	not	be	expected	to	increase	in	the	near	future	
•  To	right-size	the	budget,	mul:ple	county	departments	were	

affected		
•  Reduc:ons	of	$4.3	million	were	set	for	the	Sheriff’s	Office	
•  Recently	amended	budget	to	add	10	new	correc:ons	officers	
•  Addi:onal	savings	require	process	improvements	/	redesign			

3	



Execu:ve	Overview	Lean	Deployment	

•  An	ini:al	mee:ng	was	held	February	16,	with	the	Chairman’s	leadership	team	
•  A	second	mee:ng	was	held	March	15,	with	the	Chairman	and	the	Sheriff	
•  A	mee:ng	was	held	March	29,	with	the	Sheriff’s	team	to	set	a	direc:on	

–  Gary	Caruana	*	
–  Dominick	Barcellona	
–  Bob	Redmond	*	
–  Mark	Karner		
–  Michael	Schultz	
–  Tami	Goral	*	
–  Tammy	Stanley	*	

•  Provided	an	overview	of	what	a	Lean	Transforma:on	is	and	what	to	expect	
•  Lively	conversa:ons	suppor:ng	the	elimina:on	of	waste,	improved	service	
•  Decided	to	move	forward	quickly	focusing	ini:ally	on	three	areas:	

–  Correc:ons,	especially	the	transporta:on	of	prisoners	
–  Court	House	Security	
–  Civil	Processes		

•  Scheduled	a	workshop	April	4,	to	launch	process	improvement	ini:a:ve	
–  Ini:al	a`endees	*,	plus	Donald	Gasparini,	Jr.	

4	



Recommended	Approach	
•  Phase	1	–	Design	and	develop	the	solu:on	

–  Process	documenta:on	
–  Iden:fy	improvements	
–  Develop	implementa:on	plan	

•  Phase	2	–	Implement	the	solu:on	
–  Pilot	Implementa:on	
–  Monitor	and	make	adjustments	
–  Define	roll	out	implementa:on	

•  Phase	3	–	Monitor	and	Standardize	
–  Documenta:on	and	training	
–  Implement	complete	

	
5	



Recommended	Approach	–	Phase	1	
•  Document	Current	process	–	Don’t	change	what’s	not	known	

–  Value	Stream	Map	
–  Swim	Lane	Map	

•  Iden:fy	Process	Improvement	Opportuni:es	
–  Research	best	prac:ces	within	industry	
–  Best	prac:ces	that	current	stakeholder	have	ideas	for	

•  Create	a	Future	State	process	–	A	shared	objec:ve,	common	goals	
–  Value	Stream	
–  Swim	Lane	

•  Develop	Implementa:on	Plan	
–  Scope,	Schedule,	Resources	
–  Performance	Metrics	

Most	Important	–	Involve	cross	func:onal	stakeholders	in	all	stages	
	 	A	team	based	approach	is	ideal	

	

6	



Value	Stream	Map	

7	



Swim	Lane	Map	

8	



Phase	1	–	Requirements	and	Timing	
•  Requirements	

–  Access	is	required	to	all	relevant	work	areas	included	in	scope	
–  Access	to	all	relevant	informa:on	suppor:ng	the	process	
–  Sustained	par:cipa:on	of	knowledgeable	representa:ves	of	each	area	
–  Key	individuals	may	be	engaged	as	needed	including	interviews	
–  Work	space	suitable	for	team	interac:on	and	workshops	
–  Internet	access,	printer	access,	parking	

•  Timing	
–  An:cipated	dura:on	for	Phase	1	is	6	to	8	weeks	
–  Level	of	effort	during	Phase	1	is	2	to	3	days	per	week	
–  Key	deliverable	of	Phase	1	is	the	implementa:on	plan,	i.e.	Phase	2	

•  Scope,	Schedule,	Resources	
•  Metrics	and	expected	outcomes	

–  Agreement	from	Steering	Commi`ee	to	proceed	to	Phase	2	

	 9	



Phase	1	–	Cost	of	Services	
•  Fees	are	normally	billed	at	$1,200	per	day.	
•  Fees	for	Phase	1	will	be	discounted	to	$800	per	day.	
•  Days	of	service	for	Phase	1	are	expected	to	be	24	
•  Consul:ng	fees	@	24	days	X	$800	=	$19,200	
•  Fees	do	not	include	expenses	incurred,	billed	separately	

Discount	is	applied	assuming	the	$19,200	will	be	paid	in	advance	
as	a	retainer.		If	the	number	of	days	used	is	less	than	24,	the	
remainder	will	either	be	applied	to	Phase	2	or	expand	Phase	1	to	
addi:onal	areas.	
	
On	a	personal	note,	this	community	is	my	home.		I’m	very	
interested	in	a	role	that	helps	move	our	community	forward.	

	
10	



Sponsored by:  David Fiduccia  County Board Meeting: April 26, 2018 
 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Public Safety Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CITY OF ROCKFORD FOR TEMPORARY 911  

CALL TAKING & DISPATCH SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago wishes to contract with the City of 
Rockford to temporarily provide 911 emergency call taking services; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the County and the City have negotiated an agreement containing 
the terms for providing such emergency call taking services, a copy of the agreement is 
substantially the same as that attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the County 
Board of the County of Winnebago is authorized and directed to execute an 
intergovernmental agreement with the City of Rockford to temporarily provide 911 
emergency call taking services, which is substantially similar to the attached Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption by both the County of Winnebago and the City of 
Rockford. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Mayor of the 
City of Rockford and to the Sheriff of Winnebago County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Respectfully Submitted, 
      PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
TIANA J. MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 


	Amended Agenda
	Revised Agenda
	"St. Ambrogio's 100th Anniv. - Proclamation
	"Public Health Accreditation" - Proclamation
	30th Anniv. of Great American Cleanup - Proclamation
	Chairman's Report
	Administrator's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Finance Committee
	Budget Amendment 2018-023 Sheriff
	Budget Amendment 2018-024 Host Fee Fund
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Executive Summary
	Res Approving Recommendations for 2018 Host Fee Allocations
	Executive Summary
	Res to Approve Payment of Architectural Services Rendered
	Res Granting Authority to Winn. Cty. Brd. Chairman to Execute Documents
	Project Quickstart Resolution
	Quickstart Agreement & Attachments
	Operations & Admin. Committee
	Res Affixing Compensation & Other Benefits for Certain Elected Officials
	Executive Summary
	Res Authorizing Joint Purchasing Seal Coating Services
	Res Establishing a Special Committee on County Government Efficiency
	Res Denouncing Neo-Nazi & White Supremacist Actions in Winn. Cty.
	Public Safety Committee
	Res Authorizing Execution of Traffic & Parking Enforcement Agreement
	Traffic & Parking Enforcement Agreement
	Res Approving Position Requisition for Sheriff's Deputy Position
	Executive Summary
	Res to Approve Agreement for Phase 1 Lean Implementation Consulting Services
	Res Authorizing Execution of Agreement for Temporary 911 Call Taking 



